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Financial Highlights

g

Six months ended 30 June

Revenue
Gross profit
Profit before tax

Profit for the period (Note 1)

Profit for the period attributable to
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent

Basic

Diluted
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Note 1: Profit for the period represents profit before netting off profit for
the period attributable to non-controlling interests.

BiaEt -

HZ6H30R 1L6MEA
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEST) (REEFER)
1,762,749 1,772,247
456,046 380,939
143,270 76,929
98,258 55,205
82,140 17,073
16,118 38,132
2.63 cents 0.55 cents
2.637 0.55%
2.63 cents 0.55 cents
2.635 0.557
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30 June 31 December

2016 2015

20164 20154

6H30H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARH TFAR®

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEET) (BEFEE)

Non-current assets IERBEE 1,305,449 1,221,748

Current assets RENVEE 3,353,519 3,645,816

Current liabilities MENAE 1,203,117 1,313,771

Net current assets FMENEE 2,150,402 2,332,045

Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 3,455,851 3,553,793

Non-current liabilities ERBaE 514,850 97,764

Total equity kg 2,941,001 3,456,029
Attributable to: LA &7 e

Owners of the parent [STNCIE PPN 2,839,837 3,316,907

Non-controlling interests FESE M S 101,164 139,122
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Market Review

During the Period under Review, the global economy was unstable
with the occurrence of a series of impactful risks and no sign
of growth in major economies. The expectation of U.S. Federal
Reserve rate hike stirred up market sentiment, while Brexit also
posed great impacts to the European Union and global economies.
The negative effects triggered by both political and economic
turmoil have hindered the global economic recovery.

As indicated by the National Bureau of Statistics, the nationwide
GDP increased 6.7% year-on-year in the first half of 2016. The
PRC economy has entered into a new era of “New Normal”
with economic growth slowdown, industrial restructuring, and
economic development modification. Guided by the different
policies progressively launched such as “the Belt and Road”
initiative, “Made in China 2025” and “Internet Plus”, the PRC
semi-conductor lighting industry will trend toward intelligence,
informatisation, quality enhancement and standardisation in 2016.
Meanwhile, the real estate market in China has rebounded as a
result of various state policies of destocking housing inventories
and the surge of new bank lending which in turn fuels the demand
for the lighting industry.

The LED lighting industry has been developing rapidly with frequent
product updates and inter-generational product transition that
increases the market demand for replacement, resulting in the
prevalence of mergers and acquisitions, industry restructuring and
company closure. Major LED lighting enterprises have embarked
on adjusting their marketing strategies to explore their own niches
with an attempt to focus on segmented market. Enterprises have
also started to pay attention to the importance of luminous efficacy
and quality enhancement so as to provide customers with more
intelligent, personalised and quality lighting experience, in search
of new business development. As the kick-starting year for the
“13th Five-year Plan” in 2016, the development of “Smart City”
has become an inevitable trend in China. As a stepping stone for
“Smart City” development, intelligent lighting will undergo a new
round of development with the aid of new policy implementations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED AT

Progress on Litigation

From December 2014 onwards, a subsidiary of the Company
(the “Subsidiary”) initiated a series of court proceedings in the
PRC against Mr. WU Changjiang, a former director and former
chief executive officer of the Company, and others in relation to a
number of purported pledges and guarantees entered into by Mr.
WU Changjiang purportedly on behalf of the Subsidiary, and certain
counter guarantees provided by a PRC company. The Subsidiary
is also a co-defendant in three PRC court actions commenced by
two PRC banks and a finance company, respectively, in relation
to several purported pledges and guarantees entered into by Mr.
WU Changjiang. Please refer to the Company’s 2015 annual report
for more information.

In relation to one of the aforementioned court actions commenced
by a PRC bank (the “First Bank”) against the Subsidiary as a
co-defendant, certain funds held by the Subsidiary had been
frozen by the First Bank. In addition, the Company received a
judgment from the Chongqging Fifth Intermediate People’s Court
(the “Judgment”) in May 2016, which, among other things, ordered
that the Subsidiary was jointly and severally liable with another
PRC company for the payment of RMB60,000,000, plus interest
and costs, to the First Bank. Please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 22 May 2016 for details. The Company has
filed an appeal against the Judgment with the Chongqging Higher
People’s Court, and the outcome of the appeal is pending.

Business Review

2016 is the year of reform implementation for the Group. In
respect of the market positioning, the Group expedited the
simultaneous development of “Commercial Lighting + Household
Lighting”. The Group continued to push forward the rapid
development of commercial lighting while actively explored the
business opportunities of household lighting with an aim to achieve
remarkable growth results of household lighting and commercial
lighting businesses. In relation to channels expansion, leverage
on its competitive edge in engineering project, the Group won the
bids and commenced operation for the “G20 Summit Hangzhou
Qianjiang Century City Lighting Project”, and significant municipal
projects including the “Liuzhou Feng Qing Gang Lighting Project”

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED Interim Report 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

and “Xiangjiang Lighting Project”. Meanwhile, the Group has also
secured a group of large-scale chained commercial clients led by
Evergrande Group (18 X% @) and Greenland Group (4% 52 ). In
terms of the products, the Group adopted a dual-engine model of
“Quality + Design” that enhanced the functionality, craftsmanship
and appearance of the products to strive for excellence and
refinement. In particular, the commercial lighting business has
shifted its focus from the general market to segmented market.
The Group adhered to mid- and high-end positioning for its
household lighting products to achieve unity in professionalism,
technology and art with its competitiveness in design and price-
to-performance ratio. As for product management, the Group
continued to enhance supply chain management and optimize
the manufacturing processes to improve its responsiveness. The
application of the lean production and management system as well
as the “Amoeba” operating concept imposed strict production and
labor cost control and lifted up the overall operating efficiency.
Furthermore, the Group has been proactively seeking opportunities
to reinforce the complementarity among industry players and
accelerate overseas market expansion, and also enhanced the
international influence of the NVC brand by means of various major
sport events. Overall, the Group has witnessed fruitful outcomes
from the standardisation measures while the costs and fees have
been effectively controlled since the implementation of reform
and transformation, contributing to the remarkable growth in the
Group’s overall results.

Sales and distribution

As for the NVC brand in the PRC market, the Group incorporated
38 exclusive regional distributors during the Period under Review.
The exclusive regional distributors had a total of 3,187 exclusive
outlets (100.0% coverage rate in the provincial capital, 93.9%
coverage rate in the prefecture-level cities, 68.0% coverage rate
in the county-level cities, and 1.8% coverage rate in the town
centers), representing a decrease of 250 exclusive outlets as
compared with the Corresponding Period. Such decrease was
mainly due to the elimination of some underperforming outlets
while reforming and upgrading the advantageous outlets so
as to increase the sales volume of each outlet. Apart from the
exclusive outlets, the exclusive regional distributors also had a
total of 1,143 exhibition counters and exhibition walls. During the
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEwED M

Period under Review, the Group strengthened the construction
of household sales channels, integrated products and suppliers’
resources, and set up a comprehensive household marketing
system. Meanwhile, the Group endeavored to transfer traditional
channels to 020 business model in order to realise the advantages
of both offline servicing and online cost-effectiveness, aiming
at providing consumers with perfect shopping experiences and
products with high price-to-performance ratio. Driven by the
revenue growth of household lighting products during the Period
under Review, the sales volume of NVC brand products in the PRC
reached RMB1,073,119,000, representing a 13.2% increase as
compared with the Corresponding Period.

In respect of the NVC brand in the international market, the Group
restructured the product lines in light of the “Technology + Art”
strategy to gradually broaden and deepen the sales channels,
while expedited the NVC brand globalisation strategy grasping the
opportunities arising from Rio Olympic Games during the Period
under Review. Product development will incline toward international
standard and take reference to the product series and positioning
of large-scale international enterprises for technology advancement,
in order to enhance the market positioning and quality control of
the products. In terms of channel development, the number of
engineering projects in Middle East continued to grow, while
projects like the Qatar FIFA World Cup and the top 10 family-
operated hotels in United Arab Emirates were in smooth progress.
At the same time, the Group has actively expanded the Southeast
Asia market by launching the NVC brand and project in Indonesia.
In addition, with reference to the successful market development
by the UK NVC, the Group has kicked off the preparation work
for setting up offices in Singapore and Dubai. The UK, Brazil,
Dubai and Singapore offices will form a stronghold of service
and support network covering global front-end markets upon
completion to provide clients with more immediate and prompt
services. However, dragged by the international economic situation
during the Period under Review, the international sales volume of
NVC brand products dropped 6.1% from the Corresponding Period
to RMB178,718,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For non-NVC brands in the PRC and the international markets,
the Group mainly supplied well-known lighting enterprises with
energy-saving lamps, energy-saving light tubes and accessories in
the form of ODM. The Group’s non-NVC brands were in a gradual
transition from traditional lighting products to LED lighting products.
Impacted by the shrinking market share of the traditional lighting
products during the Period under Review, the total sales volume
of non-NVC brand products was RMB510,912,000, representing
a drop of 19.4% as compared with the Corresponding Period.

Product research and development and design

During the Period under Review, the roadmap of the Group’s
research and development focus on “Technology + Art”. In relation
to the development of new products and new technology, the
Group continued to promote the product platforms, modularisation,
serialisation and standardisation. During the Period under Review,
the Group launched 39 new products in the luminaire series, and
started to conduct research on smart lighting. In respect of the
enhancement of production efficiency, the Group kept pushing
forward the reform of production automation and semi-automation.
The cost of existing products reduced as a result of various
proactive measures including the standardisation of components
and parts, advancement of technical processes, minimization
of procurement categories, as well as the adoption of bulk
procurement. During the Period under Review, the Group invested
RMB25,944,000 in research and development, accounting for
1.5% of the Group’s revenue. As at 30 June 2016, the Group had a
workforce of 346 in product design and research and development.
Furthermore, the Group applied for 45 new patents with 14 patents
granted and approved during the Period under Review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Brand promotion and honors

2016 marked the third year for the Group’s in-depth cooperation
in brand promotion with Federation Internationale de Natation
(“FINA”). The Group continued to adopt the sports marketing
strategy through being the title sponsor for the 2016 FINA Diving
World Series and the 2016 FINA Men’s Water Polo World League
to enhance the international influence of NVC brand. Furthermore,
the Group cooperated with platforms like Chimelong Group (K[
£ &) and Champions League (78 E B &2) proactively to satisfy the
needs of different consumer groups by working with respective
clients, with an aim to achieve the unity of product quality and
efficacy. Meanwhile, UK NVC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, was granted the “Best Foreign Enterprise Award” by the
British Chambers of Commerce for its outstanding localisation
strategies and excellent development prospects. UK NVC was
also selected as one of the 21 featured case studies in the “China-
Britain Belt and Road Case Studies Report 2016”, which was jointly
issued by China-Britain Business Council and Tsinghua University,
representing the general public’s recognition to and certification
of the NVC brand. In June 2016, the Group was rated by the Top
500 Chinese Brand Evaluation Committee and the World Brand
Value Lab respectively as one of the “China’s 500 Most Valuable
Brands” in 2016 with the brand value of RMB15.397 billions,
consolidating its leading position in the lighting industry for five
consecutive years.

Future Prospects

The Group achieved significant results from all standardisation
measures since reform implementation and transformation have
taken place, achieving fruitful results in the first half of 2016.
In the future, the Group will continue to adhere the strategy of
“Sales Promotion, Product Enhancement, Brand Building and
Cost Control”, shaping the Group as the pinnacle in the lighting
industry through framing a high-end brand with the perfect blend
of technology and art.

In respect of “Sales Promotion”, the Group will conduct channel
expansion in the domestic commercial lighting market, the domestic
household lighting market and the overseas market. The Group
will gradually set up a sound product system for the segmented

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED Interim Report 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

market in the domestic commercial lighting market, coupled with
the implementation of engineering project management and the
enhancement of project delivery capability. For the domestic
household lighting market, the Group will reinforce intensive
training and terminal management to form professional household
retail teams and town channel development teams so as to capture
the market share in the region. Meanwhile, the Group will carry
out renovation of exclusive outlets. It is estimated that there will
be over 700 reformed or newly established exclusive outlets. As
for the overseas market, the Group will deploy more resources on
the development of project distributors in the regions of Southeast
Asia, Middle East, and Eastern Europe, with an estimation of 20
more new project distributors. The Group will also make great
efforts to develop exclusive outlets, shops-in-shops and exhibition
walls. It is estimated to add 100 outlets for our brand.

With respect to “Product Enhancement”, the Group will focus
on adjusting product structure and product mix of commercial
lighting and household lighting products. Art and intelligence will
become the newly defined consumer demands. In particular, the
development focus in commercial lighting products will shift from
the general market to segmented market, whereas the household
lighting products will focus on mid-and high-end products so as
to achieve unity in professionalism, technology and art.

As for “Brand Building”, along with the in-depth reform of the
Group, providing customers with magnificent lighting experience
through innovative technology and artistic design has become
the mission of the Group. In terms of technology, the Group will
implement the pilot automation and semi-automation tests and
focus on smart lighting products. In terms of art, designers will
play vital roles in product system, with the kick-off of marketing
cooperation with designers and luxurious products. Meanwhile,
the Group will enhance its brand value by virtue of significant
marketing events, including Rio Olympic Games, G20 Summit, and
the operation of pioneering smart store among industry players.

In terms of “Cost Control”, the Group will carry out systematic
product planning, balance production capacity, minimise order
placements and centralise purchasing to lower procurement cost.
The Group will also implement “Amoeba” operation mode concept
with, lean management and the optimal organisational structure
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Management Discussion and Analysis'
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to streamline staffing, and press ahead the automation and
semi-automation of production plant so as to reduce production
costs. From product standardisation to platform-orientated, the
Group will make use of its integrated advantages of upstream and
downstream resources to develop new secondary optical platform
and power supply platform based on its existing lighting solutions
with an aim to reduce research and development costs eventually.

Financial Review
Revenue

Revenue represents the net amount of the invoiced value of goods
sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts. During
the Period under Review, the turnover of the Group amounted to
RMB1,762,749,000, representing a decrease of 0.5% as compared
with the Corresponding Period. In particular, the LED lighting
products recorded revenue of RMB1,176,887,000 with a drastic
increase of 94.8% from the Corresponding Period.

Revenue by product segments
The table below sets forth the revenue by product segments

(luminaire, lamp and lighting electronic products) and the growth
rate of each segment.

&

ER¥EBHE  BEBERKN: KE
mEIREL - FERALE  BELTH
BREGEY HERAENIEBRIRER
EERFOZRAEBFEMERT A
TR RIRFEARHTEA -

Bt %5 [ 8
HEWA

HEWRABEEEYNERZEE - £
BRBREMFTMAFRE - BEHAN - A&
EEREHEERARARK1,762,749F
7T BREHI T [£0.5% © EALEDER AR E
mREHEHERARARK1,176,887F
7T - A ERIEIE K94.8% ©

KB an 77 B &) 77 BT A

TERHBIRERDE (BE - SRR
Bes) NHBARE D EFHIERE -

Six months ended 30 June

HZ6H30H16MEA

2016 2015

20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000 Growth rate
FARY FAREE ERE
Luminaire products BEEMR 1,210,405 1,060,923 14.1%
Lamp products JIREE mh 443,105 580,272 -23.6%
Lighting electronic products FRAAERSEM 109,239 131,052 -16.6%
Total &3t 1,762,749 1,772,247 -0.5%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Period under Review, the sales of luminaire products
increased 14.1% mainly attributed to the successful transformation
of the Group’s diversified business models and the remarkable
growth in the sales of household lighting products, accounting for
an important revenue growth source of the Group. Sales of lamp
products and lighting electronic products recorded a decrease of
23.6% and 16.6% respectively, mainly due to the transformation
of some lamp products and lighting electronic products from
traditional lighting to LED lighting, as well as the declining sales
volume and unit price of traditional lighting products under the
fierce market competition of LED lighting products.

Revenue by geographical locations, NVC brand sales and
non-NVC brand sales

The table below sets forth the revenue by geographical locations,
NVC brand products and non-NVC brand products and the growth
rate of each item. Our non-NVC brand products primarily consist
of ODM products.

EEEN WA

CIEEEAN - BEEMBEEER14.1% £
ERRAEBZ T EBEANKINE
A XERAERBEERAE KA
AEEEZMNRAERRR  KRE®
THE T F£23.6% & RRAFESEMmIHE T
16.6% * TEZREBAKEMNE D IR K
BAERENGEENEERBAMLEDR
BB BRE  mMESRAERMNES
MEEELEDRAAE MBI T ISHF
ETTE T -

‘A FE (7 & R & o dp i B IF & 1 o M 35
&2 747 A

TREHIIZIBUENE L MEERM
FEITmHMERSITNVHERANERA
BRBRER - B FETmEERE
Z FHODMEE mn 48K °

Six months ended 30 June

HZ=6H30H L6 A
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000 Growth rate
FARY FARE BEE
Sales revenue from PRC REFEHNHEERA
NVC brand BT M 1,073,119 947,780 13.2%
Non-NVC brand EEL WS 137,967 157,992 -12.7%
Subtotal NE 1,211,086 1,105,772 9.5%
Sales revenue from REBETISEN
international market SHEWA
NVC brand ELmE 178,718 190,370 -6.1%
Non-NVC brand JFEEL MR 372,945 476,105 -21.7%
Subtotal NEE 551,663 666,475 17.2%
Total A5t 1,762,749 1,772,247 -0.5%

ELRBERBMROA 2016FH Bt
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EEERWET AN

Revenue by LED lighting products and non-LED lighting products

The table below sets forth our revenue from LED lighting products
and non-LED lighting products and the growth rate of each item.

(™

H& L EDARBA 2 i FIFFLEDAR 852 dn 77 &5 &) 77

TR HIIRLEDIRAAZE m A FELEDAR A E
SEDH ARSI HILREE o

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H L6 A

2016 2015

20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000 Growth rate
FARY FARE BRE
LED lighting products LEDRRBEAE i 1,176,887 604,264 94.8%
Non-LED lighting products JELEDFRAAE M 585,862 1,167,983 -49.8%
Total 4% 1,762,749 1,772,247 -0.5%

Cost of Sales SHER A&

Cost of sales mainly consists of the cost of raw materials,
outsourced manufacturing costs, direct and indirect labor costs
and indirect costs. Major raw materials of the Group include iron,
aluminum and alloys, fluorescent powder, glass tubes, electronics
components and LED packaged chips. Outsourced manufacturing
costs primarily include the cost of purchased semi-finished
products and finished products produced by other manufacturers
and used in the production of our products. Indirect costs primarily
include water, electricity, depreciation and amortisation and others.
The table below sets forth the composition of our cost of sales:

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED Interim Report 2016
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Six months ended 30 June
B Z6H30HL61EA
2016 2015
20164 20154
Percentage in Percentage in
RMB’000 revenue (%) RMB’000 revenue (%)
FAR®E {HUAEHI(%) FARE  (HUBALLH(%)
Raw materials R 707,830 40.2% 889,459 50.2%
Outsourced INBLEEEERK AR
manufacturing costs 415,973 23.6% 253,843 14.3%
Labor costs AT AN 127,452 7.2% 162,146 9.1%
Indirect costs MEER 55,448 3.1% 85,860 4.9%
Total cost of sales HERAEEET 1,306,703 74.1% 1,391,308 78.5%

During the Period under Review, the cost of sales as a percentage
to revenue decreased from 78.5% to 74.1%, the gross profit
margin increased from 21.5% to 25.9% accordingly, mainly due
to the comprehensive cost saving measures adopted by the
Group, including public procurement and tendering, strengthening
inventory management, restructuring of the production flow, and
the implementation of “Amoeba” operating and lean production,
etc., which have significantly controlled the costs and improved
the overall gross profit margin level.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit is calculated as the net value of sales revenue less
cost of sales.

During the Period under Review, gross profit of the Group was
RMB456,046,000, representing an increase of 19.7% as compared
with the Corresponding Period, gross profit margin increased
from 21.5% to 25.9%. The gross profit and gross profit margin by
segments are as follows:

EIEHARN HERAEBRANES L
W78 5% N E741% » EF R EK
21.5% A %E25.9% ' TERAEEHTT
FHEMEKAER  BEAHEKERE -
MeREFER - BEEERE - T
KEIEEURBREES  F8EKA
SEIRPREIES - 1I2e T REBERIEKE -

EFNREF=R

FEAFEHEHEWAREHERRZA)FRE
CEHRN AEBEERENAARK
456,046 F 7T © WA HAE K19.7% © E£F

K{21.5% EFAE25.9% o KD EHIER
RENZHRAT
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(i) The table below shows the gross profit and gross profit (/) TREFISERDH (BE - KR
MRIAEE) WEFTERE -

margin by product segments (luminaire, lamp and lighting

electronic):
Six months ended 30 June
HZE6H30H LL6fE A
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 (%) RMB’000 (%)
FARYE (%) FARKE (%)
Luminaire products BAE®R 361,142 29.8% 254,369 24.0%
Lamp products HIRE M 71,439 16.1% 103,226 17.8%
Lighting electronic RAEREm
products 23,465 21.5% 23,344 17.8%
Total &t 456,046 25.9% 380,939 21.5%

16

During the Period under Review, gross profit margin
of luminaire products increased by 5.8% to 29.8% as
compared with the Corresponding Period, which is
mainly attributable to the implementation of effective
and comprehensive cost reduction measures and the
contribution from increasing proportion of household lighting
products with higher gross profit margin. Gross profit
margin of lamp products decreased by 1.7% to 16.1% as
compared with the Corresponding Period, which is mainly
due to the unsaturated production capacity and decline
in selling price of traditional lamp products. Gross profit
margin of lighting electronic products increased by 3.7% to
21.5% as compared with the Corresponding Period, which
is attributable to the Group’s comprehensive cost reduction
measures, as well as the impacts of the product structure
adjustment and the fluctuation of exchange rate.
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TRINRPAR AR IR IR B &
ErmMERNRIFELMmEEMN
EFRENE

(i) The table below shows the gross profit and gross profit (/)
margin by geographical locations and NVC brand products
and non-NVC brand products:

Six months ended 30 June

HZ6A30H 1L61E A
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 (%) RMB’000 (%)
FAR®E (%) FARE (%)
Gross profit from HEHEES
PRC sales: HER
NVC brand Eangaral i 318,099 29.6% 222,940 23.5%
Non-NVC brands EEL MM 19,880 14.4% 21,646 13.7%
Subtotal NEF 337,979 27.9% 244,586 22.1%
Gross profit from BIRSHEELE
international sales: HER
NVC brand ELmE 48,871 27.3% 46,014 24.2%
Non-NVC brands SEE LM 69,196 18.6% 90,339 19.0%
Subtotal gt 118,067 21.4% 136,353 20.5%
Total Xl 456,046 25.9% 380,939 21.5%

BTXRBERBRAT 2016F P HME
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(i) The table below sets forth the gross profit and gross profit
margins of LED lighting products and non-LED lighting
products:

(i) T EREFILEDER B E & A & JELED

R B E R ) B F R E UK

Six months ended 30 June

HZ6H30R 1L6/EA
2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 (%) RMB’000 (%)

FTARY (%) FARE (%)

LED lighting products  LEDRBRAZE & 337,093 28.6% 151,806 25.1%
Non-LED lighting JELEDFRRAE B

products 118,953 20.3% 229,133 19.6%

Total gross profit BEF 456,046 25.9% 380,939 21.5%

Other income and gains H b A K Wz

Our other income and gains mainly consist of trademark license
fees, rental income, gain on sales of scrap materials, gain on
disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, government
grants and interest income (the breakdown of other income and
gains is provided in note 5 to the interim condensed consolidated
financial statements on page 76 of this report). We received various
types of government grants as tax subsidies and incentives for
research and development activities and expansion of production
capacity of energy-saving lamp. Government subsidies are
provided by relevant authorities at their discretion, and may not
necessarily be recurring in nature. We licensed our trademark to a
limited number of related companies and a third party company at
one to three percent of the companies’ sales amount as trademark
license fees. During the Period under Review, other income and
gains were RMB32,537,000, representing a decrease of 24.3% as
compared with the Corresponding Period, which was mainly due to
the decrease in trademark license fees and government subsidies
during the Period under Review.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED Interim Report 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and distribution costs

Our selling and distribution costs mainly consist of freight costs,
advertising and promotion expenses, staff costs and others
including office expenses, custom clearance expenses, travelling
expenses, depreciation and amortisation, insurance fees and other
miscellaneous costs.

During the Period under Review, our selling and distribution
costs were RMB140,412,000, representing a decrease of 8.2%
as compared with the Corresponding Period, which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in marketing and promotion fee as
well as the control in office expenses. Our selling and distribution
costs as a percentage of revenue dropped from 8.6% to 8.0%.

Administrative and other expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly consist of staff costs,
amortisation and depreciation, research and development
expenses, office expenses and others, which mainly include
taxes, audit fees, other professional fees, bad debt provision and
miscellaneous items. These taxes mainly include land use tax
and stamp duty in connection with our administrative functions.
Other expenses mainly consist of losses on disposal of property,
plant and equipment and scrap materials, impairment loss of
property, plant and equipment, donation, exchange losses and
other miscellaneous expenses.

During the Period under Review, our administrative expenses
were RMB167,724,000, representing a decrease of 10.0% as
compared with the Corresponding Period. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in staff costs and the legal
consultation fees as compared with the Corresponding Period.
Our administrative expenses as a percentage in revenue decreased
from 10.5% to 9.5%.

EEEN WA

HERDIHEN

BHMMEERDHERTERRES
SEMEEE BIRANMEMER -
BREBANE - HREZE XBE FEM
B - (REREME AR -

EEHARN ZAMNEERSHEHEAR
B B T [£8.2% » E A KR ®140,412F
LA TREERIRMGHEEREHEEDN
WL UAREHRABA AT E -
BMEERDHERGRANL A A
8.6% NFEE8.0% °

EEBARHEMER

EEEMNTIEBREREIAAN - BEEHMIT
E M%E BAEAMEMER
ZEEHREA - BB HBEXER
REBEMEMME - GERATEE
FRERFIMITIHRE B A L E AR
MEER HMERTERBRRED
X BE REBEEBEHRNEBEX BE-
BB RBHUBERSK  BEXH &
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CIEMA AMMERERRRBATE
10.0% ' #E AR ¥A167,724F L Z &
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During the Period under Review, our other expenses increased
significantly compared with the Corresponding Period, which was
mainly due to the impairment loss of production equipment for
traditional lighting products amounting to RMB38,774,000.

Finance costs

Finance costs represent interests on bank loans, interest expenses
on convertible bonds and other interest expenses.

Share of Results of Associates

This item represents the Group’s share of net profits or net losses
in the associates during the Period under Review.

Gain on Disposal of a Subsidiary

This item represents the Group’s gain from the disposal of a
subsidiary during the Period under Review.

Income Tax Expense

During the Period under Review, the Group’s income tax expense
increased significantly to RMB45,012,000 as compared with the
Corresponding Period, which is mainly attributable to the higher
income tax rates of the profitable subsidiaries including Huizhou
NVC and Zhongshan NVC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Profit for the Period (including Profit Attributable to Non-
controlling Interests)

Due to the factors mentioned above, our net profit for the
period (including profit attributable to non-controlling interest) was
RMB98,258,000 during the Period under Review.

Exchange Differences on Translation of Foreign
Operations

During the Period under Review, our exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations were RMB10,277,000. These
exchange differences primarily arose from the translation of the
financial statements of the Company and the overseas subsidiaries
which are denominated in foreign currencies.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent for the Period
Due to the factors mentioned above, profit attributable to owners

of the parent for the period was RMB82,140,000 during the Period
under Review.

Profit Attributable to Non-controlling Interests for the
Period

During the Period under Review, profit attributable to non-
controlling interests for the period was RMB16,118,000.

EEEN WA

ANEAFE (B8 IF 42 Bl 1 R 2 PR 45 3R
)

R AZE - BIEEH AR PIA B FEF
(B IEIEE S E L) BAR
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Cash Flow and Liquidity
Cash flows

The table below sets out selected cash flow data from our
consolidated statement of cash flows.

RERERAEBM
RERE

THREIRBEMNEHRERERTE
«E"Jfﬁﬁ//wigwffi

Six months ended 30 June

22

HZ6H30H1-61EA
2016 2015
2016 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARH
Net cash flows generated from KESEETS
operating activities REMEFHE 108,618 129,621
Net cash flows used in WEEBFTH
investing activities RenEFHE (217,653) (240,447)
Net cash flows generated from BB RS
financing activities REREFHE 237,698 81,909
Net increase/(decrease) in RENREFEY
cash and cash equivalents #®in,CRd) B8 128,663 (28,917)
Cash and cash equivalents at HYRE MRS EY
beginning of period 917,953 796,694
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREFB L TR
changes, net 8,917 8,177
Cash and cash equivalents as KRB REBRERER
stated in the statement of FEIMNEe KRS EEY
financial position and cash flows 1,055,533 775,954

As at the end of the Period under Review, the cash and bank
balances of the Group were mainly denominated in RMB, HKS,
GBP, BRL and US$. The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.
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Liquidity TENE

Net current assets and working capital sufficiency FREEEREELELTH 7EE

TRINTERMARACQERRN TS E

The table below sets out our current assets, current liabilities and

net current assets as at the end of the Period under Review. E RBEENFRBEE
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20164 20154
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARKE
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =Fg 426,897 495,450
Trade and bills receivables B o REEEWRR 1,239,411 1,189,914
Prepayments, deposits and ERR - REE R
other receivables H U ER K 353,166 344,778
Income tax recoverable TELTRTIS R 4,978 7,998
Other current assets HittmEh&E 22,585 16,515
Restricted bank balances and ZRRFIAERITRARE &
short-term deposits 52 EIER 250,949 660,307
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIRLEEY 1,055,533 903,849
3,353,519 3,618,811
Assets of disposal group classified D AEERENEREEE
as held for sale - 27,005
Sub-total current assets REEE /D 3,353,519 3,645,816
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables B o5 NREBENERER 580,361 611,498
Other payables and accruals EMEMSRETERER 520,491 483,032
Interest-bearing loans FFEEMR 44,911 174,122
Government grants BT 4 B 2,024 2,034
Income tax payable FES FT1S R 43,642 38,381
Convertible bonds AR ES
— derivative component —PTETIAEIMD 11,688 -
1,203,117 1,309,067
Liabilities of disposal group D EAEEFEN
classified as held for sale EEAE - 4,704
Sub-total current liabilities REBE G/ 1,203,117 1,313,771
NET CURRENT ASSETS BREBEE 2,150,402 2,332,045

ELRBERBMROA 2016FH Bt

23



- LU

= -
- _ ;
Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERWET AN

As at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015, the total net
current assets of the Group amounted to RMB2,150,402,000 and
RMB2,332,045,000 respectively, and the current ratio was 2.79
and 2.78 respectively. In light of our current liquidity position,
the unutilised banking facilities available to the Group and our
projected cash inflows generated from operations, the Directors
believe that we have sufficient working capital for our present
requirements and for the next 12 months.

Capital Management

The following table presents our gearing ratios as at the end of the
Period under Review.

201656 A30HF 2015F12831H » A
SEMNFIRBEELEIINAARK
2,150,402F ;T f A R #2,332,045F 7T -
MENL R R A2.79F12.78 - R AP B
ATV BN MR « REBERTTH AL
MEESRBEURTBHESEMEENIR
T BEERRBMAEERECNEEERR
FERT BRI ARKI2EANE ST K -

EXER

TREJNBANALBERARNERAE

Pk .

30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20164 2015%F
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Interest-bearing loans FFEBEMN 44,911 174,122
Total debt BEFEE 44,911 174,122
Less: cash and cash equivalents and W ReERREEEYR
short-term deposits REFER
(excluding restricted bank balances) (BRI ERITFER) (1,251,406) (1,528,502)
Net debt FE N/A ~E A N/A T iEF
Total equity attributable to owners NRRHEE AELRER
of the parent 2,839,837 3,316,907
Gearing ratio BEREELE N/A ~EH N/A i A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The primary goal of our capital management is to maintain the
stability and growth of our financial position. We regularly review
and manage our capital structure and make corresponding
adjustments, after taking into consideration changes in economic
conditions, our future capital requirements, prevailing and
projected profitability and operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditures and projected strategic investment opportunities.
We manage our capital through monitoring our gearing ratio
(which is calculated as net debt divided by the total equity
attributable to owners of the parent). Net debt is the balance
of interest-bearing loans less cash and short-term deposits
(excluding restricted bank balances).

Inventories

The balance of inventories represented our balance of stock of raw
materials, work in progress and finished goods as at the end of
the Period under Review. We monitor our inventories on a regular
basis.

More details about the inventories are provided in note 13 to the
interim condensed consolidated financial statements on page 83
of this report.

Trade and bills receivables, prepayment, deposits and
other receivables and restricted bank balances and
short-term deposits

Trade receivables of the Group represented proceeds receivable
from sale of goods. The Group’s trading terms with its customers
are mainly on credit, except for new customers where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit periods generally range
from 30 to 180 days for major customers. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control department
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balance. Overdue interests of several trade
receivables are calculated at an annual interest rate of 12%.
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Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables are the
amounts due from a company of RMB550,924,000 (31 December
2015: RMB550,924,000) in aggregate arising from the rights held
by the Group pursuant to several letters of counter guarantee
issued by the company which was also one of the borrowers of
the bank loans. The Directors were of the opinion that an amount
of RMB265,564,000 (31 December 2015: RMB265,564,000) was
expected to be recoverable through the enforcement of counter
guarantees. The unrecoverable amount of RMB285,360,000 has
been provided for impairment as at 31 December 2015 and 30
June 2016.

Included in restricted bank balances and short-term deposits is a
frozen bank balance of RMB54,758,000 and RMB55,076,000 as
at 31 December 2015 and 30 June 2016 respectively.

More details about the trade and bills receivables, prepayment,
deposits and other receivables and restricted bank balances
and short-term deposits are provided in note 14 to the interim
condensed consolidated financial statements on page 84 to page
87 of this report.

Trade and bills payables

More details about the trade and bills payables are provided in note
15 to the interim condensed consolidated financial statements on
page 88 of this report.

Interest-bearing loans

More details about the interest-bearing loans are provided in note
16 to the interim condensed consolidated financial statements on
page 89 to page 90 of this report.

Convertible bonds

More details about the convertible bonds are provided in note 17 to

the interim condensed consolidated financial statements on page
90 to page 93 of this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital expenditure

We funded our capital expenditure with cash generated from
operations and bank loans and cash generated from issue of
shares or convertible bonds. Our capital expenditure is primarily
related to expenditure on property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments and other intangible assets (excluding equity
investment). During the Period under Review, the Group’s capital
expenditure amounted to RMB66,755,000, mainly attributable to
the increase in leasehold improvements, machinery equipment,
moulds, non-productive equipment and patent.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangement

Except for the derivative component of convertible bonds
mentioned in note 17, note 21 and note 22 to the interim
condensed consolidated financial statements, we did not have any
outstanding derivative financial instruments or off-balance sheet
guarantees for outstanding loans. We did not engage in trading
activities involving non-exchange traded contracts.

Capital Commitments

The details to capital commitments are provided in note 23 to the
interim condensed consolidated financial statements on page 109
of this report.

Operating Lease

As a lessee, we leased certain of our office properties under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to five years. There are no restrictions placed
on us by entering into these leases. As at the end of the Period
under Review, our total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating lease falling due in the next five years
will be RMB17,656,000.
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As a lessor, we leased plants and offices under operating lease
arrangements with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one
to five years. The terms of the leases generally require tenants to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the prevailing market conditions. As at the end of the
Period under Review, our total future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases with our tenants falling due
in the next five years will be RMB3,700,000.

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Period under Review, the continuing connected
transactions of the Group do not exceed the annual caps previously
disclosed in the relevant announcements of the Company.

Mergers, Acquisitions and Investments

On 3 February 2016, Hong Kong NVC Lighting (“NVC HK”), the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, has entered into the equity
transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer Agreement”) with Gold
Interact Investment Limited (the “Transferor”). Pursuant to the
Equity Transfer Agreement, NVC HK agrees to acquire, and the
Transferor agrees to sell, 75% equity interest in LED Holdings
Limited (“LED Holdings”). The total final consideration for the
acquisition is determined to be RMB508,725,000. The major asset
of LED Holdings is 50% equity interest in Zhongshan NVC, and
the Company holds effectively 75% equity interest in LED Holdings
after the acquisition.

In March 2016, World Through Investments Limited, the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, transferred its 100% equity interest in
Zhangpu Phoebus to an independent third party vendor in the price
of RMB30,146,000. Since then, Zhangpu Phoebus is no longer a
subsidiary of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In April 2016, Huizhou NVC, the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, established NVC Kitchenware with natural persons.
Huizhou NVC contributed RMB2,550,000 and held 51% equity
interest in NVC Kitchenware. Since then, NVC Kitchenware has
become a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 4 May 2016, Huizhou NVC, the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, signed a partnership agreement with Zhuhai Henggin
Lemon Net Technology Co., Ltd. (the “General Partner”) to
establish a limited partnership. Huizhou NVC will contribute
RMB500,000,000 in cash, while the General Partner will contribute
RMB100,000,000 in cash, representing respectively 83.33% and
16.67% of the total investment in the limited partnership.

On 18 May 2016, the Board approved Huizhou NVC to contribute
a total of RMB8,000,000 into Huizhou Thorled-Opto Co., Ltd.* (&
N E Y BRI A R A R]) (“Huizhou Thorled-Opto”) with ETIC on a
pro rata basis. The amount of capital contribution to be made by
Huizhou NVC and ETIC were RMB3,920,000 and RMB4,080,000,
respectively. Since the capital contribution is on a pro rata basis,
Huizhou Thorled-Opto will remain held as to 49% by Huizhou NVC.
Upon completion of the capital contribution by its shareholders, the
total paid-in capital of Huizhou Thorled-Opto was increased from
RMB48,000,000 to RMB56,000,000.

Saved as disclosed in the above, the Group made no acquisition,
merger or sale of subsidiaries and associates during the Period
under Review.
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Issue of New Shares Under General Mandate

On 23 May 2016, the Company and the subscriber Mr. Ye Yong
entered into a subscription agreement. Pursuant to the subscription
agreement, Mr. Ye Yong conditionally agreed to subscribe and the
Company conditionally agreed to allocate and issue in aggregate
a total of 85,000,000 subscription shares. The subscription price
of HK$0.83 per subscription share represents a discount of
approximately 3.49% to the closing price of HK$0.86 per share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 23 May 2016, being the date of
the subscription agreement; and a discount of approximately 4.60%
to the average of the closing prices of approximately HK$0.87 per
share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last five trading days
immediately before 23 May 2016, being the date of the subscription
agreement. The subscription shares represent approximately 2.72%
of the existing issued share capital of the Company and approximately
2.65% of the total issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by
the allotment and issue of the subscribed shares as at the date of the
subscription agreement. According to the par value of US$0.0000001
each share, the nominal value of the subscription shares is US$8.5
(approximately HK$65.98).

The Directors have considered various ways of raising additional
funds for future use and they consider that the issue of the
subscription shares is an appropriate means of raising additional
capital for the Company since the shareholder base of the
Company will be enlarged, the capital base of the Company can be
broadened at a relatively low cost compared to bank borrowings or
the issue of debt securities, and the financial position of the Group
will be improved for establishing and strengthening the existing and
future business of the Group. The Board considers that the terms
of the subscription agreement are on normal commercial terms
and are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company
and the shareholders as a whole.

The gross proceeds of the subscription will amount to approximately
HK$70,550,000. After deducting the relevant expenses, the
estimated net proceeds from the issue of the subscription shares
amount to approximately HK$70,000,000. The net price for each
subscription share is estimated to be approximately HK$0.824. The
Company intends to use the net proceeds for general corporate
and business development and working capital requirements. The
subscription has not completed as of the date of this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Use of Proceeds from the Global Offering

We did not use the proceeds from the Global Offering in a manner
different from those set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 7 May 2010.

Significant Investment

As mentioned in the section headed “Mergers, Acquisitions and
Investments” on page 28 to page 29 of this report, Huizhou
NVC, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, signed a
partnership agreement with the General Partner to establish a
limited partnership. Through the establishment of the limited
partnership, the Company will be able to benefit from a wealth
of attractive investment opportunities in the lighting industry and
achieving economies of scale and synergies. During the Period
under Review, the limited partnership has not yet commenced its
external investment. Apart from this, the Group had no significant
investment during the Period under Review.

As mentioned in the announcement of the Company dated 23
May 2016, the Board has approved the Company to establish
an investment fund in form of a limited partnership to engage
in investment in the distributors of the Company. The expected
source of fund for the investment will be the fund generated from
the daily operations of the Company. Apart from this, the Group did
not have any plan for significant investment or addition of capital
assets during the Period under Review.

Loans and Guarantee

The Group did not grant any loans to any entities, nor did it offer
any financial assistance to its associates or make any guarantee
for the facilities granted to its associates.

Event after the Period under Review

Huizhou NVC, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, proposed
to invest RMB5,000,000 to establish a wholly-owned subsidiary
Bengbu NVC. Bengbu NVC is principally engaged in the
development, production and sale of luminaire, lamps, integrated
ceiling lamps, kitchen and bathroom appliances etc. As at the date
of this report, the registered capital is not fully paid.
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As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 6 July 2015, a
PRC bank (the “Second Bank”) commenced a court action in the PRC
against NVC China as a co-defendant. The Company has recently
received a judgment from the Chongqing First Intermediate People’s
Court (the “Second Judgment”), which, among other things, orders
that NVC China is jointly and severally liable with other co-defendants
for the payment of RMB35,497,000, plus interest and costs, to the
Second Bank. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
20 September 2016 for details. The Company has filed an appeal
against the Second Judgment with the Chongaqing Higher People’s
Court, and the outcome of the appeal is pending.

Contingent Liabilities

(@) As at 30 June 2016, contingent liabilities not provided for
in the interim condensed consolidated financial statements
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(b) The Group currently acts as defendant in lawsuits brought
by 2 PRC banks and a PRC finance company alleging
that the Group should assume guarantee liabilities and
interests according to purported guarantee agreements. The
Directors consider that the likelihood of the Group sustaining
further losses from the purported guarantees is remote, and
accordingly no provision for claims arising from the litigations
is considered necessary as at 31 December 2015 and 30
June 2016, save for the related legal and other costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 June 2016, save for those disclosed elsewhere in these

interim condensed consolidated financial statements, the following
assets of the Group were pledged, as applicable:

(1)

As at 30 June 2016, certain land use rights with aggregate
carrying amounts of RMB48,973,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB49,633,000) and certain buildings included in property,
plant and equipment with aggregate carrying amounts of
RMB242,728,000 (31 December 2015: RMB248,348,000)
were pledged for the Group’s applications of assets
preservation in certain PRC legal proceedings.

As at 30 June 2016, certain trade receivables with
carrying amounts of RMB42,430,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB22,153,000) and property in UK with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB45,536,000 (31 December 2015:
RMBNIil) were pledged to secure the bank borrowings.

In accordance with several letters of guarantee, deposits
with carrying amounts of RMB21,724,000 (31 December
2015: RMB20,258,000) were pledged for issuing letters of
guarantee.

The deposits with carrying amounts of RMB26,501,000 (31
December 2015: RMB26,501,000) were pledged for the
Group’s applications of assets preservation in certain PRC
legal proceedings.

Deposits with carrying amounts of RMB3,348,000 (31
December 2015: RMB4,613,000) were pledged for issuing
bank acceptance bills.

In accordance with agreements of deposits, deposits with
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB202,850,000 as at
31 December 2015 was pledged to a bank to secure bank
loans of subsidiaries of the Group.
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Employees

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had approximately 6,860
employees in total (831 December 2015: 7,125). During the
Period under Review, the relevant employee salary and benefit
expense was RMB257,211,000 (including share option expense of
RMB239,000), while our employee salary and benefit expense was
RMB292,726,000 (including share option expense of RMB36,000)
for the Corresponding Period. The Group regularly reviews
remuneration and benefits of its employees according to the relevant
market practice and individual performance of the employees. In
addition to basic salary, employees are entitled to other benefits
including social insurance contributions, employee provident fund
schemes, discretionary incentive and share option schemes. The
Group ensures that adequate training and professional development
opportunities are provided to all employees so as to satisfy their
career development needs.

Market Risks

We are exposed to various market risks in the ordinary course
of business. Our risk management strategy aims to minimise the
adverse effects of these risks to our financial results.

Foreign Currency Risk

We are exposed to transactional currency risk. Such risk arises
from sales or procurement by operating units in currencies other
than its functional currency. As a result, we are exposed to
fluctuations in the exchange rate between the functional currencies
and foreign currencies. During the Period under Review, the Group
had entered into several forward currency contracts in place to
hedge the foreign exchange exposure and did not experience
any material difficulties or negative impacts on our operations or
liquidity as a result of fluctuations on currency exchange rates.

Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to fluctuations in the prices of raw materials
which are influenced by global as well as regional supply and
demand conditions. Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials
could adversely affect our financial performance. We did not enter
into any commodity derivative instruments to hedge the potential
commodity price changes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity Risk

We monitor our risk of having a shortage of funds by considering
the maturity of our financial instruments, financial assets and
liabilities and projected cash flows from operations. Our goal
is to maintain a balance between continuity and flexibility of
funding through the use of bank loans and other interest-bearing
loans. Our Directors have reviewed our working capital and
capital expenditure requirements and determined that we have no
significant liquidity risk.

Credit Risk

Our major credit risk arises from exposure to a substantial number
of trade and bills receivables and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables from debtors. We have policies in place to ensure that
the sales of products are made to customers with an appropriate
credit limit, and we have strict control over credit limits of trade
receivables. Our cash and short-term deposits are mainly deposited
with registered banks in Mainland China and Hong Kong. We also
have policies that limit our credit risk exposure to any financial
institutions. The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables,
prepayments, and deposits and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and short term deposits included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent our maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to our financial assets. We have no other
financial assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk. In
2015, we entered into a number of one-year insurance contracts
with China Export & Credit Insurance Corporation, which covered
up to 85% of uncollectible receivables from PRC sales and 90%
uncollectible receivables from international sales during the period
from 1 December 2015 to 30 November 2016 with a maximum
compensation amount of RMB19,200,000 for PRC sales and
US$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB194,808,000)
for international sales. We purchased such insurance in order to
minimise our exposure to credit risk as we expand our business.
We plan to renew such insurance contracts when they become
due.
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Disclosure of Interests

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares and Underlying
Shares

As at 30 June 2016, so far as the Directors and chief executives
of the Company are aware, the following shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had 5% or more
interests or short positions in the issued shares and underlying
shares of the Company which were recorded in the register
required to be maintained by the Company pursuant to Section

B0 47 AR 49 2
mMNIRE

*
e

Ny l/
¢

R2016F6 830 @ AR EE &S
TERABRTA  RBIE(GEHFRBEEN)
FIETFEMNETERRELAME
T~ TAIRRER GERRRIEEFER &I
AB) RARGBE TN RARERD
HEAHL%HIA RS SAR -

336 of the SFO:

Number of
shares or Percentage
underlying of the total
Name of shareholder Nature of interests Class of shares shares issued shares
R EERTRA
RRERB BEiHE R4 Rl HBROHE b
Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Bene%ztciﬁal owner gtrdinary shares 845,746,000 (L) 27.03%
Company Limited EREEA Lk (Note 1)
EREEEE (B4) BRAR (Hat1)
Iil'IC Interest of corporation (j)trdinary shares 845,746,000 (L) 27.03%
EREE controlled by the Lk (Note 2)
substantial shareholders (Hit2)
FEREFEGEEE R
SB Asia Investment Fund Il L.P. Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 578,711,000 (L) 18.50%
ERBEA Lak
Guoyuan Investment Fund Series SPC Investment manager Ordinary shares 540,540,540 (L) 17.28%
(Acting on behalf of Guoyuan Global BRI A (Note 3)
Income Fund Segregated Portfolio) (#3)
Guoyuan Investment Fund Series SPC (R &
Guoyuan Global Income Fund Segregated
PortfoliofT =)
Schneider Electric Asia Pacific Limited Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 288,371,000 (L) 9.22%
ERBEA Lak
Schneider Electric Industries SAS Interest of corporation Ordinary shares 288,371,000 (L) 9.22%
controlled by the TiEk (Note 4)
substantial shareholders (H1it4)
FEREAEGIEEE R
Schneider Electric SA Interest of corporation gtrdinary shares 288,371,000 (L) 9.22%
controlled by the =il (Note 4)
substantial shareholders (Hit4)
FEREAEGIEEE O5ER
irect, L.L.C. eneficial owner rdinary shares ,351, 67%
GS Di LLC Beneficial Ordi h 177,351,000 (L) 5.67%
ERBAA LiEk
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Interest of corporation Ordinary shares 187,335,757 (L) 5.99%
controlled by the LiEk (Note 5)
substantial shareholders (B1it5)

TRBERAED EE RS
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Notes:

(L) represents long position.

These shares are held by Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Company
Limited. As Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Company Limited is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ETIC, ETIC is deemed to be interested
in all these shares.

These shares represent the maximum number of shares to be
issued and allotted upon exercise in full of the conversion rights
attaching to the convertible bonds issued by the Company pursuant
to the subscription agreement dated 20 May 2016 entered into
between the Company and Guoyuan Investment Fund Series SPC
(acting on behalf of Guoyuan Global Income Fund Segregated
Portfolio).

These shares are held by Schneider Electric Asia Pacific Limited.
As Schneider Electric Asia Pacific Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Schneider Electric Industries SAS, which in turn is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Schneider Electric SA, Schneider
Electric Industries SAS and Schneider Electric SA are deemed to
be interested in these shares.

These shares are held by GS Direct, L.L.C. (177,351,000 shares),
Goldman Sachs (Asia) Finance (5,725,000 shares), Goldman
Sachs International (3,987,000 shares), Goldman Sachs Asset
Management, L.P. (272,000 shares) and Goldman, Sachs & Co.
(757 shares), respectively. As all these companies are held by The
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. directly or indirectly, The Goldman
Sachs Group, Inc. is deemed to be interested in the shares held
by the aforesaid companies in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, so far as the

Directors are aware, no other person (except the Directors and

chief executives of the Company) or corporation had 5% or more

interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company which were recorded in the register required to be

maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Disclosure of Interests
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1. LRRFRLFE -

2. ZERMBRREERR (F8) BRAR
FE - BxHEER (FE) ARATRRE
FHENZEWMBAR  EibEsBEER
BRRZEROPHEARER -

3. ZERD ABRIBEAARIN201645 201 £
Guoyuan Investment Fund Series SPC (ft
#Guoyuan Global Income Fund Segregated
PortfoliofT %) A1 B RE W Z - NARF
BATH A R EFH FTHT R IR R R BT
& BTETREERSZHRG -

4. % % B 19 mSchneider Electric Asia
Pacific Limited# 7 ° Schneider Electric
Asia Pacific LimitedZSchneider Electric
Industries SASH) 2 E I B & &+
Schneider Electric Industries SASX &
Schneider Electric SAKYZ= & W B A 7] -
At Schneider Electric Industries SASK
Schneider Electric SAt1R AR ZE/R MK+
HmAEER -

5. #Z % B 1 o 5 BGS Direct, L.L.C.#
B177,351,0008% + Goldman Sachs
(Asia) Finance#%/5,725,000% * Goldman
Sachs Internationalf§#43,987,000/&
Goldman Sachs Asset Management, L.P.
# H272,0008% & Goldman, Sachs & Co.
AR BRZE R A %2 AThe
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. B sk
A » EitkThe Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
WREREZERANRARBIFMBEERS
HEP IR -

BREXFIHEEEN REZA B
20166 H30H * BIEEM AL (KRF]
EEYUROTBRAERIN SAEHE
BELNBRIE(GES RBEKN) 5336
BREARAEEFNETTMANER
AR D K HB R R 1D 5% 8k LA | HyAE 25 a0
g o
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Disclosure of Interests

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in the Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 30 June 2016, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company have or are deemed to have interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or recorded
in the register required to be maintained pursuant to Section 352
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
provisions of the Model Code.

Controlling Shareholders

During the Period under Review, the Company did not have any
controlling shareholder.
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Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
conditionally approved and adopted at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 27 April 2010. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to provide the Company with a means of incentivising
and retaining employees, encouraging employees to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and promoting the long-
term growth of the Company. This scheme will link the value
of the Company with the interests of the participants, enabling
participants and the Company to develop together and promoting
the Company’s corporate culture. The Directors may, at their
discretion, invite any Directors (including executive Directors, non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors),
employees and advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors,
contract manufacturers, agents, customers, business partners
and service providers of any member of the Group who the Board
considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute
to the Group to participate in the Share Option Scheme. The period
within which the options must be exercised shall be determined
by the Directors at the time of grant and such period must expire
no later than 10 years from the date when the Board resolves to
make the offer of options to the grantees. All outstanding options
shall lapse when the grantee is dead or retired, the employment of
the grantee ceases or where the grantee is no longer an employee
of the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by the
Company shall not exceed 10% (the Company may refresh the
10% limit in certain conditions) of the aggregate of the shares in
issue on the listing date or 30% of the shares in issue from time
to time. The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant under the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted
by the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue. Any further grant of options which would
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Disclosure of Interests

result in the number of shares issued as aforesaid exceeding
the said 1% limit requires shareholders’ prior approval with the
relevant participant and his associates abstaining from voting. At
the time of grant of the options, our Company may specify any
minimum period(s) for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised. The Share Option Scheme does not contain any
such minimum period.

The subscription price for the shares the subject of the options
shall be no less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five Stock Exchange business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share
upon its issue. The amount payable by a grantee on acceptance of
a grant of options is US$1. The Share Option Scheme will expire
on the date of the tenth anniversary of the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. Further details of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 7 May 2010.

During the Period under Review, no option has been granted under
the Share Option Scheme.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme”) approved by the Board on 15 October
2006 and amended on 23 December 2009 and 24 March 2010.
The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to assist the
Company in attracting, retaining and motivating key employees,
Directors, consultants and strategic suppliers. The aggregate
number of shares subject to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is 240,429,000 shares, representing 8.11% of the issued share
capital of the Company following the initial public offering.
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Options have been granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and shall expire no later than 10 years from the date
the Board resolves to make the offer of options to the grantees.
Options granted to grantees under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall vest immediately to the grantees, or vest to the
grantees at a rate not more than 25% of each such grant for each
year commencing from the date when the grantees can exercise
such options granted to them. The exercise price of these share
options was determined by the Board with reference to the market
value of the Company’s ordinary shares and the Company’s equity
value.

In the event that the Board allows a grantee to exercise an option
granted under this Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme by delivering
shares previously owned by such grantee and unless otherwise
expressly provided by the Board, any shares delivered which were
initially acquired by the grantee from the Company (upon exercise
of a share option or otherwise) must have been owned by the
grantee at least six months as at the date of delivery. The Company
will not be obligated to deliver any shares unless and until it
receives full payment of the exercise or purchase price therefore
and any related withholding obligations and any other conditions
to exercise or purchase have been satisfied. Unless otherwise
expressly provided, the Board may at any time eliminate or limit a
grantee’s ability to pay the purchase or exercise price of any option
granted under this Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme by any method
other than cash payment to the Company. The Board may take all
actions necessary to alter the method of option exercise and the
exchange and transmittal of proceeds with respect to grantees
resident in the PRC not having permanent residence in a country
other than the PRC in order to comply with applicable PRC foreign
exchange and tax regulations. Further details of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme are set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 7 May 2010.
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EmE

As at 30 June 2016, details of outstanding options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:

NAN

MR2016F6A30H * B X A ITAIE
MR B T MARITENEREFB D
—|T:

Percentage
of the
number
of shares
outstanding
as at
Number of Number of 30 June 2016
shares shares to the total
outstanding outstanding shares issued
asat asat Exercise R2016F
1 January 2016 30 June 2016 price 6A30A
R2016% 20165 (HKS per GESHEL
Relationship 1418 64308 share) RO#EH
Name of the grantee Class of shares  with the Group HARTEL WRATER TEE# Dateof grant  Expirydate ~ CEFHERX
ARALS &R HAZENEE LOEE RAgE  (Bn/R) B3R HER fEM
Others (including Share options Employees 6,200,000 - 21 24March2010 24 March 2016 -
senior managemen) BlRE and others 2010638248 201638248
AAE (RRAEEAE) EEREH 1,000,000 1,000,000 21 24 March 2010 8 February 2017 0.032%
2010838248 2017E2/8H
Total
At 7,200,000 1,000,000 0.032%

During the Period under Review, out of the share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, none of the share

options was exercised or cancelled.

During the Period under Review, out of the share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, 6,200,000 share options
lapsed due to the expiration of the share option. The lapsed share

options are as follows:

Exercise price
(HK$ per share)

BB - &R B % 1T A AR AR B
B0 7 5 T B8 B A o ok 7 B AR A 8L 7T 2
G R

CIEEHA  BXARETIERES
B FTIR T BE AL 5 6,200,00017 A 1748
HAPR B BA T SR 3K o SRARAVBBAR AN T ¢

Number of share options lapsed THEER Date of grant Expiry date
KMBRESE (Bx,/ 1K) ®£FH A
6,200,000 2.1 24 March 2010 24 March 2016
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Corporate Governance

The Directors are of the opinion that, during the Period under
Review, the Company had complied with the applicable principles
and codes provisions set out in the Code, except for Code
Provision A.2.1 which requires that the role of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same person. Given that Mr. WANG Donglei
assumed the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer,
the Company deviated from this code provision. Mr. WANG
Donglei is the chairman and general manager of ETIC, which is the
controlling corporation of the largest shareholder of the Company,
Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Company Limited. Mr. WANG
Donglei has many years of experience in product research and
development, manufacturing and business management. The dual
role arrangement provides strong and consistent market leadership
and is critical for efficient business planning and decision making
of the Company. As all major decisions are made in consultation
with members of the Board and its other relevant committees,
and there are three Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board offering independent perspectives, the Board is therefore
of the view that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure
sufficient balance of powers within the Board. The Board will also
continue to review and monitor the practices of the Company for
the purposes of complying with the Code and maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance practices of the Company. Save
as disclosed above, the Company had fully complied with the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Code.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. Specific enquiry has
been made to all Directors, and all the Directors have confirmed
that they had complied with all relevant requirements as set out in
the Model Code during the Period under Review.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

TEREBRHEMER

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board continuously oversees the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. During the
Period under Review, the Board, through the audit committee
of the Company, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The Company has established internal audit systems including the
internal audit department and the risk control department to review
and improve the Group’s internal control measures and oversee
the measures to be implemented effectively. They all report directly
to the chief executive officer. It is complementary to the duties of
the external auditor and plays an important role in the Company’s
internal governance.

After receiving the confirmation from the management to the Board
the effectiveness of these systems, the Board is of the view that
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
well-established, effective and adequate.

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules with written
terms of reference. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
include maintaining relationship with the auditor of the Group,
reviewing financial information of the Group, supervising the
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
system of the Group, and the duties of corporate governance
designated by the Board. During the Period under Review, Mr. LIN
Ho-Ping has retired as a Non-executive Director with effect from
15 June 2016, therefore, he ceased to be the member of Audit
Committee. Ms. YANG Jianwen has been appointed as a member
of Audit Committee by the Board on the same date. Currently,
the Audit Committee consists of three members, namely, Non-
executive Director Ms. YANG Jianwen, Independent Non-executive
Director Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway and Independent Non-
executive Director Mr. WANG Xuexian, respectively. Mr. LEE Kong
Wai, Conway has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2016.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with the Listing
Rules with written terms of reference. The primary duties of
the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual Executive Directors and senior management, the
remuneration policy and structure for all directors and senior
management, and establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration. Ms. WU Ling has resigned as
an Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 25 August
2016, therefore, she ceased to be the member of Remuneration
Committee. Currently, the Remuneration Committee consists of
three members, namely, Non-executive Director Mr. ZHU Hai,
Independent Non-executive Director Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway
and Independent Non-executive Director Mr. WEI Hongxiong,
respectively. Mr. WEI Hongxiong has been appointed as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) in compliance with the Code with written terms of
reference. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of directors, and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive directors. Ms.
WU Ling has resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director
with effect from 25 August 2016, therefore, she ceased to be the
member of Nomination Committee. Mr. WEI Hongxiong has been
appointed as a member of Nomination Committee by the Board
on the same date. Currently, the Nomination Committee consists
of three members, namely, Executive Director Mr. WANG Donglei,
Independent Non-executive Director Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway
and Independent Non-executive Director Mr. WEI Hongxiong,
respectively. Mr. WANG Donglei has been appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

TEERRHEMER

FWEES

AR B K ER T A8 Bl A AR 5 &% 37 % M
ZEg((FHZEEE)) UHEE@E
BiEEE - TWEESNTERERIE
ERENRTEZT RS REEE N H M
F8 2RESNSATEENTHK
REEBUHERNESSRERHER &
537 B BAAE 7 DA I 5E A5 8 BT B ORI 3R
B EmEREEEERNTAHEENE
BAT2HEBETRSEESNGTH - RE
ZTEBEBLIERNITES - B20165F
BH25HRBAEMN F M THEFMEES
KB - FTMNEESRA=RKEMEK -
DREBIERITESRBLLE BIUIEH
TEEFEHELENBYIERITESRE
RHRE BREBEECHEZ T AT
ZEEFRF -

REEEE

AAREBEHRBTARERLIREZES
2((REZEg]) THTcE@EBE
HE - REZECTNTEBERERS
EESNEE BEEKAITRBREZE
EEMHEBRER RESZERETH
ZMEZTCREER  URFEBIIE
HITESEMB Y REZTEEITE
MIEMITEE H2016F8A25H B E
M TEEREZEEENE - [
H BEEeCXIRTEHLERBRERST
BgXB - ERLZEBHHm=-FZKEHR
K DRARITESILELE B
FRTEETEFRENBIIERITE
EREHEE - IXRELEEHWERA
REAZESNER -

ELRBERBMROA 2016FH Bt

45



46

Corporate Governance and Other Information

TEERARAEMER

Strategy and Planning Committee

The Company established a strategy and planning committee (the
“Strategy and Planning Committee”) under the Board with written
terms of reference. The primary duty of the Strategy and Planning
Committee is to propose and formulate the strategic development
plan of the Company for the Board’s consideration. Ms. WU Ling
has resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect
from 25 August 2016, therefore, she ceased to be the member
of Strategy and Planning Committee. Mr. XIAO Yu has been
appointed as a member of Strategy and Planning Committee by
the Board on the same date. Currently, the Strategy and Planning
Committee consists of three members, namely, Executive Director
Mr. WANG Donglei, Executive Director Mr. XIAO Yu and Non-
executive Director Mr. ZHU Hai, respectively. Mr. WANG Donglei
has been appointed as the chairman of the Strategy and Planning
Committee.

Independent Investigations Committee

To advance the internal investigations into matters involving
Mr. WU Changjiang, the former Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, the Company has established
an independent investigations committee (the “Independent
Investigations Committee”) under the Board. The Independent
Investigations Committee has been authorised by the Board
to exercise powers and perform duties on behalf of the Board
in relation to the conduct of the investigations into, among
other things, the alleged wrongdoing of Mr. WU Changjiang. The
Independent Investigations Committee has also been authorised
to consider and make recommendations to the Board with
respect to any potential proceedings arising from the internal
investigations. In connection with the Company’s investigations of
the alleged wrongdoing of Mr. WU Changjiang, the Independent
Investigations Committee has instructed a third-party service
provider to conduct a forensic review of related irregularities
and an internal controls assessment of the Company and its key
subsidiaries. The forensic review and internal controls assessment
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has been completed. Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 17 July 2015 and 17 September 2015 for details.
During the Period of Review, Mr. LIN Ho-Ping has retired as a
Non-executive Director with effect from 15 June 2016, therefore,
he ceased to be the member of Independent Investigations
Committee. Ms. YANG Jianwen has been appointed as a member
of Independent Investigations Committee by the Board on the
same date. The Independent Investigations Committee currently
consists of four members, namely, Non-executive Director Ms.
YANG Jianwen, Independent Non-executive Director Mr. LEE
Kong Wai, Conway, Independent Non-executive Director Mr. WEI
Hongxiong and Independent Non-executive Director Mr. WANG
Xuexian, respectively.

Emergency Committee

The emergency committee of the Company is officially dissolved on
25 August 2016. The functions and duties of the said committee
shall be taken over by the Board.

Appointment and Resignation of Directors and
Change in Directors’ Information

From 1 January 2016 to the date of this report, the appointment
and resignation of Directors and changes in the Directors’
information of the Company are as follows:

Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, has ceased to be an Independent
Non-executive Director of CITIC Securities Company Limited (a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 6030, and the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600030) with effect from May 2016.

Mr. LIN Ho-Ping has retired as a Non-executive Director, member
of Audit Committee and member of Independent Investigations
Committee with effect from 15 June 2016.
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TEERRHEMER

Ms. YANG Jianwen has been appointed as a Non-executive
Director, member of Audit Committee and member of Independent
Investigations Committee with effect from 15 June 2016.

Mr. XIONG Jie has resigned as an Executive Director with effect
from 25 August 2016.

Ms. WU Ling has resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director, member of Remuneration Committee, member of
Nomination Committee and member of Strategy and Planning

Committee with effect from 25 August 2016.

Mr. WEI Hongxiong has been appointed as a member of Nomination
Committee with effect from 25 August 2016.

Mr. XIAO Yu has been appointed as a member of Strategy and
Planning Committee with effect from 25 August 2016.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Period
under Review.

Interim Dividend

The Board proposed not to declare an interim dividend for the six

months ended 30 June 2016 (Corresponding Period: no interim
dividend declared).
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Report on Review of Interim Financial Information

|IBDO

EaE - +852 2218 8288
{85HE : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the Board of Directors of NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

INTRODUCTION

We have reviewed the interim financial information set out on pages
56 to 111, which comprises the interim condensed consolidated
statement of financial position of NVC Lighting Holding Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) as of 30 June 2016 and the related interim condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the interim condensed
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the interim
condensed consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
interim condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for the
six months then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes. The Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
require the preparation of a report on interim financial information
to be in compliance with the relevant provisions thereof and
International Accounting Standard 34, “Interim Financial Reporting”
(“IAS 34”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and presentation of this interim financial information in accordance
with IAS 34. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this
interim financial information based on our review. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
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Report on Review of Interim Financial Information

P ERERERE

SCOPE OF REVIEW

Except as explained in the basis for qualified conclusion paragraphs
below, we conducted our review in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Review Engagements 2410, “Review of Interim
Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of
the Entity” (“HKSRE 2410”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. A review of interim financial
information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying
analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially
less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us
to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant
matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED CONCLUSION

(@) Impairment of other receivables and uncertainties
relating to financial guarantee contracts

As set out in Note 18 to the interim condensed consolidated
financial statements, a subsidiary of the Company (the
“Subsidiary”) entered into several pledge and guarantee
agreements in 2013 and 2014 (the “Pledge and Guarantee
Agreements”) with certain banks in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), providing guarantees to the banks for
their loan facilities granted to certain borrowers. Counter
guarantees were provided by one of the borrowers of the
bank loans (the “Borrower”) to the Group. During 2014,
aggregate pledged time deposits of RMB550,924,000 had
been withdrawn by the banks due to default of the bank
loans under the guarantees of the Subsidiary.
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Report on Review of Interim Financial Information

PR B ERFRERE

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED CONCLUSION RBERER® (&)

(continued)

H fth FE WK TR B & BRI 1%

(@) Impairment of other receivables and uncertainties  (a)

relating to financial guarantee contracts (continued)

The Group initiated legal actions to claim the counter
guarantees provided by the Borrower. As at 31
December 2015 and 30 June 2016, other receivables of
RMB550,924,000 due from the Borrower were included in
“Prepayments, deposits and other receivables” in the interim
condensed consolidated statement of financial position as
set out in Note 14 to the interim condensed consolidated
financial statements. The directors are of the opinion that
an amount of RMB265,564,000 (the “Recoverable Amount”)
is recoverable as at 31 December 2015 and 30 June 2016,
and accordingly a provision for the unrecoverable amount
of RMB285,360,000 had been charged in profit or loss of
the Group since 2014 and up to 30 June 2016.

As set out in Note 18 to the interim condensed consolidated
financial statements, the Subsidiary also entered into
guarantee agreements with another PRC bank in 2013 (the
“Guarantee Agreement 1”) and a PRC finance company in
2014 (the “Guarantee Agreement 2”) respectively, providing
guarantees to the PRC bank and the PRC finance company
for their loan facilities granted to their borrowers. The
outstanding loans of RMB35,497,000 and RMB34,000,000
in relation to the Guarantee Agreements 1 and 2 were in
default in 2015 and 2014 respectively. The PRC bank and
the PRC finance company have taken legal actions against
the respective borrowers and the guarantors (including the
Subsidiary and the Borrower as guarantors) to recover the
loan balances and interests. The directors consider that the
likelihood of the Group sustaining losses from the Guarantee
Agreements 1 and 2 is remote as it is considered that the
loans had sufficient underlying securities including the
Borrower’s guarantees and the Subsidiary is only one of the
guarantors for the loans. As a result, the directors consider
that no provision thereon is considered necessary as at 31
December 2015 and 30 June 2016.
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Report on Review of Interim Financial Information

P ERERERE

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED CONCLUSION
(continued)

(@) Impairment of other receivables and uncertainties
relating to financial guarantee contracts (continued)

However, as the legal proceedings are still in progress,
we are not able to assess the likely outcome of the legal
proceedings in respect of the amount that the Group would
recover from the Borrower’s assets as determined by the
court and the amount ultimately to be recovered from the
Borrower in connection with the Pledge and Guarantee
Agreements, and to determine if any provision arising
from the Guarantee Agreements 1 and 2 is necessary.
As a result, we are not able to ascertain the recoverability
of the Recoverable Amount due from the Borrower and
appropriateness of the provision respectively as at 31
December 2015 and 30 June 2016.

Any adjustments to the Recoverable Amount due from
the Borrower and any provision to be recognised as at
31 December 2015 and 30 June 2016 would have a
consequential impact on the Group’s net assets as at 30
June 2016, and the Group’s financial performance for the
six months ended 30 June 2016.

Had we been able to complete our review of the
Recoverable Amount due from the Borrower and provision
to be recognised as at 31 December 2015 and 30 June
2016, matters might have come to our attention indicating
that adjustments might be necessary to the interim financial
information.
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Report on Review of Interim Financial Information

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED CONCLUSION
(continued)

(b)

Provision for loss on financial guarantee contract

As set out in Note 18 to the interim condensed consolidated
financial statements, in addition to the agreements as
mentioned in the above paragraphs, the Subsidiary entered
into a guarantee agreement (the “Guarantee Agreement
3”) with a PRC bank in 2014, providing guarantee to the
bank for a loan facility granted to its borrower. The bank
loan was in default in 2014 and the bank has taken legal
actions against the borrower and the guarantors (including
the Subsidiary) to recover the bank loan balance and
interest. A court order was issued to freeze assets of
the guarantors (including the Subsidiary) in the amount
of RMB62,000,000. As a result of the court order, bank
balance of the Subsidiary in the amount of RMB54,758,000
and RMB55,076,000 had been frozen by the bank as at
31 December 2015 and 30 June 2016 respectively. The
directors consider that the likelihood of the Group sustaining
losses from the guarantee is remote as it is considered
that the bank loan had sufficient underlying securities and
the Subsidiary is only one of the guarantors for the bank
loan. The directors believe that the frozen bank balance
as included in “Restricted bank balances and short-term
deposits” will be released upon the conclusion of the legal
proceedings and no provision is considered necessary as
at 31 December 2015 and 30 June 2016. In addition, the
directors are of the opinion that no provision on any shortfall
between the amount to be ultimately settled by the Group
under the Guarantee Agreement 3 and the Subsidiary’s
frozen bank balance is considered necessary as at 31
December 2015 and 30 June 2016.
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Report on Review of Interim Financial Information

P ERERERE

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED CONCLUSION
(continued)

(b)

Provision for loss on financial guarantee contract
(continued)

However, as the legal proceedings are still in progress,
we are not able to assess the likely outcome of the legal
proceedings, and accordingly, we are not able to ascertain
whether any provision on the frozen bank balance as at
31 December 2015 and 30 June 2016, and any shortfall
between the amount to be ultimately settled by the Group
under the Guarantee Agreement 3 and the Subsidiary’s
frozen bank balance is required to be made as at 31
December 2015 and 30 June 2016.

Any provisions that should have been made as at
31 December 2015 and 30 June 2016 would have a
consequential impact on the Group’s net assets as at 30
June 2016, and the Group’s financial performance for the
six months ended 30 June 2016.

Had we been able to complete our review of the provisions
that should have been made as at 31 December 2015 and
30 June 2016, matters might have come to our attention
indicating that adjustments might be necessary to the
interim financial information.
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Report on Review of Interim Financial Information

QUALIFIED CONCLUSION

Except for the adjustments to the interim financial information that
we might have become aware of had it not been for the situation
described above, based on our review, nothing has come to
our attention that causes us to believe that the interim financial
information is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance
with IAS 34.

OTHER MATTER

The comparative figures for the six months ended 30 June 2015
included in the interim financial information were not reviewed in
accordance with HKSRE 2410.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Siu Fung

Practising Certificate Number P0O5308

Hong Kong, 25 August 2016
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statément of Profit or Loss

RIS SRR R

Six months ended 30 June

HZ6H30HL61EA
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARE FARE
Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
kA (REEX) (REEEZ)
REVENUE PN 3 1,762,749 1,772,247
Cost of sales HEKA (1,306,703) (1,391,308)
GROSS PROFIT E7 456,046 380,939
Other income and gains H A YA R 5 32,537 42,995
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER (140,412) (152,937)
Administrative and other expenses BEEBRNAMER (207,908) (190,477)
Finance costs B%EA 6 (4,957) (1,660)
Share of results of associates FE(LHEE N A A 545 (1,931
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary BEE—RMBARIKE 24 7,419 -
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 430 %) 78 4 143,270 76,929
Income tax expense PSR 7 (45,012) (21,724)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD A HAF 98,258 55,205
Attributable to: A& L
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZZEPN 82,140 17,073
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 16,118 38,132
98,258 55,205
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE RS AQTREEREZR
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS e AEG
OF THE PARENT BRER
Basic HAK 2.63 cents 0.55 cents
8 2.637 0.55%
Diluted g 2.63 cents 0.55 cents
8 2.637 0.55%

Details of the dividend are disclosed in Note 9 to the interim
condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

RS S EE AR

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H1L6EA
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARK
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REHERK) (REFEZ)

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD A HA R 98,258 55,205
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hit2mEKkA
Iltems that may be reclassified AEET R
subsequently to profit or loss: B XA -
Exchange differences on translation HEGINETEEER
of foreign operations X Z5E (10,277) (1,542)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale A EemMEE
financial assets NABEEEFH W E 2,600 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME THEEKAEE
FOR THE PERIOD 90,581 53,663
Attributable to: LA & 79 FE4h -
Owners of the parent SREHA A 74,626 16,195
Non-controlling interests FEPE SR A 15,955 37,468
90,581 53,663
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Stafément of Financial Position

RIS S IR R R

30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20165 20156
6A30H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®
Notes (Unaudited) (Audited)
Mz (REER) (fE&Z)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  BERRE 10 695,989 738,143
Prepaid land lease payments B LwHe 11 48,098 48,758
Goodwill SRS 21,161 21,161
Other intangible assets HEpEE 311,406 294,974
Investments in associates REE N EIRE 34,275 26,430
Investment in a joint venture RELARAIRE 26 100,000 -
Available-for-sale financial assets ARENECHERE 12 24,600 -
Deferred tax assets EEHBEE 53,764 51,567
Trade receivables with maturity JHMERE—FR
more than one year B 5 R X 14 13,214 13,856
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEME BER
plant and equipment REBENZE 2,942 26,859
Total non-current assets FREBEEA 1,305,449 1,221,748
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories e 13 426,897 495,450
Trade and bills receivables ZHREERIREDR 14 1,239,411 1,189,914
Prepayments, deposits and BERK - RESR
other receivables HA RS 14 353,166 344,778
Income tax recoverable B AES 4,978 7,998
Other current assets HibRBEE 22,585 16,515
Restricted bank balances and XBHIRRITHER
short-term deposits BEER 14 250,949 660,307
Cash and cash equivalents Be KR EEY 1,055,533 903,849
3,353,519 3,618,811
Assets of disposal group classified BN BEBREN
as held for sale REEE - 27,005
Total current assets RBEEAT 3,353,519 3,645,816
Continued/... B/
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR & Ot AR R &

30 June 31 December
2016 2015
2016 20154
6A30H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARH FTARE
Notes (Unaudited) (Audited)
k3 (REBER) (EZ)
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBRE
Trade and bills payables B REBRENER 15 580,361 611,498
Other payables and accruals Hio AR RSB 520,491 483,032
Interest-bearing loans HRER 16 44,911 174,122
Government grants B #B 2,024 2,034
Income tax payable EHFTERH 43,642 38,381
Convertible bonds - derivative component aRkES - TETARS 17 11,688 -
1,203,117 1,309,067
Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale D AR AEFENRESE - 4,704
Total current liabilities REBEESS 1,203,117 1,313,771
NET CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE 2,150,402 2,332,045
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERRDEE 3,455,851 3,553,793
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBAE
Government grants B #Bh 13,917 14,419
Deferred tax liabilities ELHIAEEE 83,132 83,345
Convertible bonds - liability component MRRES - AEHN 17 417,801 -
Total non-current liabilities ERBEBESE 514,850 97,764
Net assets FEE 2,941,001 3,456,029
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BAREE AEGEDR
Issued capital BRTIRA 2 2
Reserves =15 2,839,835 3,290,695
Proposed final dividend BEERAHRE - 26,210
2,839,837 3,316,907
Non-controlling interests FEFHIEER 101,164 139,122
Total equity BER 2,941,001 3,456,029
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FHIEASHRERER

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30HLL6MEA
2016 2015
20164 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEST) (REEFER)
Net cash flows generated from R EEFTS
operating activities REREFE 108,618 129,621
Net cash flows used in investing activities KEEEFTA
HemeEF58 (217,653) (240,447)
Net cash flows generated from RMEEEE
financing activities REREBFH 237,698 81,909
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERBEEED
cash equivalents #hn,CRid) B 128,663 (28,917)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period Ei¥IR& MR HEW 917,953 796,694
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net MEREB AR 8,917 8,177
Cash and cash equivalents as stated REF AR R R
in the statement of financial position BemEaRP LY
and cash flows MRS RIS ZEEY 1,055,533 775,954
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SRS RS BR

Six months ended 30 June 2016

B F2016F6H30H 1F61E8H
Attributable to owners of the parent
BAREAARL
Employee
equity  Foreign Proposed Non-
benefit  currency final controlling
Share  Share  Equity  Other Shareholders’ Statutory  reserve translation Retained dividend interests ~ Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve contribution reserve EEEE  reserve  profits EERH  Total  FEHE  equity
BEARE ROKE BERE EMBE  BREE GE0RE BARE ENRE ERME 0 RE A BE MER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TARE TARE TARE TARM TARE TARE TARE TARE TAR® TARM TARE TARE TARE
At1 January 2016 201651418 2 1840716 (4159) - 6416 130452 4549 (92,553 1405213 26210 3316907 139,122 3,456,029
Profit for the period pi:ifdes - - - - - - - - 82140 - 8140 16118 98,258
Other comprehensive income: 2 AU A :
Exchange differences REGHER
on translation of EENES
foreign operations 25 - - - - - - - (10,114) - - (10,114 (163 (10.277)
Fair value gain on NHeREE
avalable-for-sale MhEEE
financial assets - - - 2,600 - - - - - - 2,600 - 2,600
Total comprehensive TH2ERA
income for the perod Ay - - - 2600 - - - (0114 82,140 - T4626 15955 90,581
Transfer to statutory resenve— E) R RS - - - - - 10 - - (1) - - - -
Forfeiture of share options BIRELH - - - - - - (235) - 2% - - - -
Employee share option EERRERE
arrangements - - - - - - 239 - - - 239 - 239
Acquisition of addition WE-FIE
interests in a subsidlary INGESIY - (525,725) - - - - - - - - (525,725)  (26,347) (952,072
Capital contribution from plankllie 7]
non-controlling interest pE - - - - - - - - - - - 2,434 2,434
Dividend paid to @ e RE
non-controling shareholder iR - - - - - - - - - - - (30,0000 (30,000)
Transfer upon disposal of HE-ENEB
a subsidiary NAEEE - - - - - (767) - - 767 - - - -
Dividend paid FHkeE - - - - - - - - - (26,210 (26,210) - (26.210)
At 30 June 2016 2016%6A30R
(Unaudited) (K23 2 1314001 (4158 2,600 6416 196,714 4553 (102,667) 1,481,386 - 0,839,837 101,164 2,941,001
Continued/... B/ ..
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RIS ERRER

Six months ended 30 June 2016
B E2016F6H30H 1F61EH

ﬂa

%

G

Attributable to owners of the parent

iy

BRAEEARE
Employee
equity  Foreign Non-
Statutory ~ benefit  currency controlling
Share Share Eouity ~Shareholders’  reserve  reserve translation  Retained interests Total
capital  premium  reserve  contrbuon  EERA  EBEX  reseve  profts Tota  FEAE equity
BE BhEE EREE B BE BHEE EXERE ARME At En R
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TARE TARE TARE TARE TARB TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE
At 1 January 2015 20155118 2 1,866,926 (4,158) 6,416 114,921 5237 (106,165 1,364,283 3,247,462 119,147 3,366,609
Profi for the period RHHE - - - - - - - 17018 17078 88182 55205
Other comprehensive income: 2 2EMA
Exchange differences on HERIEH
translation of foreign EENES
operations 28 - - - - - - (878) - (878) (664 (1542
Total comprehensive income TE2EUA
for the period At - - - - - - (@78 17073 16195 37,468 53,663
Transfer to statutory reserve YN SN - - - - 267) - - 267 - - -
Forfeiture of share options BRELH - - - - - (748) - 748 - - -
Employes share option EEEMRE
arrangements T - - - - - 36 - - 36 - 36
Dividend paid to a non- R
controling shareholder REZ RS - - - - - - - - - (58,800)  (58,800)
At 30 June 2015 2015564308
(Unaudited) (8% 2 1886926 (4158 6416 114650 4505 [107,043) 1382371 3263693 97815 3,361,508
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

AR & O B TS R R BT RE

1.1

Basis of Preparation

These interim condensed consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2016 (the
“Period under Review”) have been prepared in accordance
with the applicable disclosure requirements of Appendix
16 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and International
Accounting Standard 34 Interim Financial Reporting issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board. These
interim condensed consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand ('000) except when otherwise
indicated.

The accounting policies and basis of preparation used in
the preparation of these interim condensed consolidated
financial statements are the same as those used in the
Group’s annual consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015, except for the adoption
of the new and revised International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which also include International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations).

These interim condensed consolidated financial statements
do not include all information and disclosures required in
the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements, and
should be read in conjunction with the Group’s annual
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

1.1

mRER

N B & £2016F6 H30H 1L61E
ATEBHALD T HEREE 6
MBHRRDVEBREEHMERSMA
[RAARE 7 AR I &+ 7R e i@
RAEERTRER G EARES
MR A ) B & R R S 345k B R
BRERE - ZEFTHHREASHH
BHREGUAAREZS  RIERH
B A RESDNE R AR &E
4 #) FZ(000) °

mEZET ISR E I B mEFT
KANSABEREREEHRSR
ANEBH E2015F12A31H IEF
ERNFEGHYBRmERMEAN—
B MR E] RSB T BIPR B 7
HERA ([ERMB®EER])
(BB EEE g s8] ([EER
AR ]) k) BRI -

ZETHEHAHMBERRILTE
BASBFEAHPBREMED
FTEEHREE  WEERAER
HZE2015F12A31HIEFEMNA
HE IR —HIBIE o
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A & O A TS B AR B E

1.2

Changes In Accounting Policies and
Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
interim condensed consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the preparation of the
Group’s annual consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015, except for the adoption of
new standards and interpretations effective as of 1 January
2016. The Group has not early adopted any other standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is
not yet effective.

The nature and the effect of these changes are disclosed
below. Although these new standards and amendments
apply for the first time in 2016, they do not have a material
impact on the annual consolidated financial statements of
the Group or the interim condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The nature and the impact of each
new standard or amendment is described below:

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose
activities are subject to rate-regulation, to continue applying
most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory
deferral account balances upon its first-time adoption
of IFRSs. Entities that adopt IFRS 14 must present the
regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items on the
statement of financial position and present movements
in these account balances as separate line items in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
The standard requires disclosure of the nature of, and risks
associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects
of that rate-regulation on its financial statements. IFRS 14 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. Since the Group is an existing IFRS preparer and is
not involved in any rate-regulated activities, this standard
does not apply.
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1.2 Changes In Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements:
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that a joint operator
accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint
operation, in which the activity of the joint operation
constitutes a business, must apply the relevant IFRS 3
Business Combinations principles for business combination
accounting. The amendments also clarify that a previously
held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on
the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint
operation if joint control is retained. In addition, a scope
exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to specify that the
amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint
control, including the reporting entity, are under common
control of the same ultimate controlling party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the
initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of
any additional interests in the same joint operation and
are prospectively effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted.
These amendments do not have any impact on the Group
as there has been no interest acquired in a joint operation
during the period.

Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A & O A TS B AR B E

1.2 Changes In Accounting Policies and 1.2 S HERBEENE X

66

Disclosures (continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets that
revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that
are generated from operating a business (of which the
asset is a part) rather than the economic benefits that
are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate
property, plant and equipment and may only be used in
very limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets.
The amendments are effective prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early
adoption permitted. These amendments do not have any
impact to the Group given that the Group has not used a
revenue-based method to depreciate its non-current assets.

Amendments to IAS 27: Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method
to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in their separate financial statements. Entities
already applying IFRSs and electing to change to the equity
method in their separate financial statements will have to
apply that change retrospectively. First-time adopters of
IFRSs electing to use the equity method in their separate
financial statements will be required to apply this method
from the date of transition to IFRSs. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments do
not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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1.2 Changes

In Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle

These improvements are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. They include:

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations

Assets (or disposal groups) are generally disposed of either
through sale or distribution to owners. The amendment
clarifies that changing from one of these disposal methods
to the other would not be considered a new plan of
disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan.
There is, therefore, no interruption of the application of the
requirements in IFRS 5. This amendment must be applied
prospectively.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

(i) Servicing contracts

The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that
includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement
in a financial asset. An entity must assess the nature
of the fee and the arrangement against the guidance
for continuing involvement in IFRS 7 in order to
assess whether the disclosures are required. The
assessment of which servicing contracts constitute
continuing involvement must be done retrospectively.
However, the required disclosures would not need
to be provided for any period beginning before the
annual period in which the entity first applies the
amendments.

Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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1.2 Changes In Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (continued)

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
(continued)

(i) Applicability of the amendments to IFRS 7 to interim
condensed financial statements

The amendment clarifies that the offsetting disclosure
requirements do not apply to interim condensed
financial statements, unless such disclosures provide
a significant update to the information reported in the
most recent annual report. This amendment must be
applied retrospectively.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits

The amendment clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in
which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country
where the obligation is located. When there is no deep
market for high quality corporate bonds in that currency,
government bond rates must be used. This amendment
must be applied prospectively.

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendment clarifies that the required interim
disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements
or incorporated by cross-reference between the interim
financial statements and wherever they are included
within the interim financial report (e.g., in the management
commentary or risk report). The other information within
the interim financial report must be available to users
on the same terms as the interim financial statements
and at the same time. This amendment must be applied
retrospectively.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

AR & O B TS R R BT RE

1.2

Changes In Accounting Policies and 1.2
Disclosures (continued)

These amendments do not have any impact on the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to IAS 1 clarify, rather than significantly
change, existing IAS 1 requirements. The amendments
clarify:

° The materiality requirements in IAS 1

° That specific line items in the statement(s) of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and the
statement of financial position may be disaggregated

° That entities have flexibility as to the order in which
they present the notes to financial statements

° That the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method must be presented in aggregate
as a single line item, and classified between those
items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements
that apply when additional subtotals are presented in
the statement of financial position and the statement(s)
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. These
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted.
These amendments do not have any impact on the Group.
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1.2 Changes In Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

The amendments address issues that have arisen in
applying the investment entities exception under IFRS
10 Consolidated Financial Statements. The amendments
to IFRS 10 clarify that the exemption from presenting
consolidated financial statements applies to a parent entity
that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, when the
investment entity measures all of its subsidiaries at fair
value.

Furthermore, the amendments to IFRS 10 clarify that only a
subsidiary of an investment entity that is not an investment
entity itself and that provides support services to the
investment entity is consolidated. All other subsidiaries
of an investment entity are measured at fair value. The
amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures allow the investor, when applying the equity
method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by the
investment entity associate or joint venture to its interests
in subsidiaries.

These amendments must be applied retrospectively and are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments do
not have any impact on the Group as the Group does not
apply the consolidation exception.
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Seasonality of Operations

The principal operations of the Group are manufacture and
sales of lamp products, luminaire products and lighting
electronic products. Due to the seasonal nature of its
products, higher revenues and operation profits are usually
expected in the second half of the year rather than in the
first six months.

Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for returns and trade discounts.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Luminaire products segment:

Luminaire products represent a complete lighting
unit that consists of a lighting fixture, a lamp (namely
the light source such as a light bulb or tube) and a
lighting electronics device. The luminaire products
are sold as complete lighting units or units without
lamps and lighting electronics, based on the needs
of end customers;

(b) Lamp products segment:

Lamp products represent a range of light bulbs and
tubes for compact fluorescent lamps, HID lamps,
fluorescent lamps, halogen lamps and LED lamps;
and
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Revenue and Segment Information
(continued)

(c) Lighting electronic products segment:

Lighting electronic products represent electronic
transformers, electronic and inductive ballasts for
fluorescent, LED and HID lamps, and HID ballast
boxes.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit
or loss before income tax. The adjusted profit or loss before
income tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
or loss before income tax except that interest income,
finance costs, share of results of associates, unallocated
income and gains as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Since total assets, liabilities and capital expenditures for
each reportable segment are not regularly provided to
the chief operating decision maker, the directors are of
the opinion that the disclosure of such amounts is not
necessary.
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3.

Revenue and Segment

(continued)

Information 3.

WARDEBER (&)

Luminaire products
Lamp products
Lighting electronic products

Total

Reconciliation

Elimination of intersegment
results

Interest income

Unallocated income and gains

Corporate and other
unallocated expenses

Gain on disposal of
a subsidiary

Finance costs

Fair value loss on the
derivative component of
convertible bonds

Share of results of associates

Profit before income tax

Revenue Results
['ON EF
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June
B Z6A30HL6EA HZE6A30HL6MEA
2016 2015 2016 2015
20165 20154 20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR®E TARE TAR® TAREK
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) CREEEZ) CREER) CREERZ)
B EEm 1,210,405 1,060,923 361,141 254,369
HRE 443,105 580,272 74,365 102,269
FRAAERE M 109,239 131,052 23,900 27,792
B 1,762,749 1,772,247 459,406 384,430
FEEE
WD B A M LR
(3,360) (3,491)
FBUA 9,632 10,686
R ERHA R 22,905 32,309
EREM
RO EA (347,483) (343,414)
BE—KMB
NE 7,419 -
Mi%E R (4,957) (1,660)
AR E ST A
T A
DREEZEHIEXR (837) -
JEIRERE R A A 545 (1,931)
A A 143,270 76,929
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RIS Ot B R AR MY

4. Profit Before Income Tax 4. BiRTFIE
This is arrived at after charging/(crediting): kR (FEA) U TEES

Six months ended 30 June

B ZE6H30H LL6fE A
2016 2015
20165 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY TFARM
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REgEZ)
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKAE 1,316,275 1,375,497
Depreciation e 47,485 53,611
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEf Tt B s
payments 660 731
Amortisation of computer software, fEE s - BEBIER
customer relationships and patents* &?@ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ* 1,178 1,613
Research and development costs: AR
Deferred expenditure amortised* EEERETR 1,416 1,786
Current period expenditure RERAY 25,944 23,982
Less: Government grants B BER
released** BUT#H B (173) (239)
25,771 23,743
27,187 25,529
Minimum lease payments SIERBEK 7,629 8,695
Auditor’s remuneration 2Rl % B 1,080 -
Employee benefit expenses REBAMAZ
(including directors’ and chief (REEZERES
executive’s remuneration): TTERABEHM) :
Wages and salaries TENT S 218,020 238,956
Equity-settled share option expense 7%%&,% B8 I e <2 239 36
Pension scheme contributions RIRE R EIE R
(defined contribution scheme) (FREHFETED 25,734 30,908
Housing funds’ contributions FEAESHR 6,142 8,086
Other welfare expenses HiEHFx 7,076 14,740
257,211 292,726
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AR & O B TS R R BT RE

4.

Profit Before Income Tax (continued)

This is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (continued)

4.

BATADE (42

gk GEA) K TRIRMS

(%)
Six months ended 30 June
EZ6H30H L6MEA
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY TARM
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REgEZ)
Impairment of property MERE MEERE
plant and equipment 38,774 4,305
Impairment of trade receivables, net & 5 EUWIEZRE E5E 15,212 3,056
Reversal of impairment of TEAT R I Eo At FE U
prepayments and other receivables IR R E R - (6)
Write-off of prepayments and Taf R R E At
other receivables FE WS R TR M 9,413 -
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down  (BE[RIHUR) / #UR
of inventories to net realisable value ~ 1F&ZE Al #1758 (9,572) 15,811
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of BBV FE -
property, plant and equipment FEIEE®
(M=), Bk (2,598) 631
Fair value losses, net: AREEBEXFHE:
The derivative component of AR ESNITE
convertible bonds (Note 17) T AR (MiF17) 837 -
Forward currency contracts RERINES 4T - 1,618

The amortisation of computer software, customer
relationships and patents and the amortisation of deferred
development costs for the Period under Review are
included in “Cost of sales” and “Administrative and other
expenses” in the interim condensed consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

- FOEHEERET  FRPERR
SN AR 5 DA S IR AIE 5 B PR S £
SEARHEAAMIEER HEK
KR [EEREMER] -
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Cons':)Iidated Financial Statements

RIS Ot B R AR MY

BRI FE (42

4. Profit Before Income Tax (continued) 4.

*k

Various government grants have been received for setting

up research activities in Chongging City, Guangdong and
Zhejiang Province, the PRC, to support the development of
energy-saving products and LED products. The government
grants released have been deducted from the research and
development costs to which they relate. Government grants
received for which related expenditure has not yet been
undertaken are included in government grants in the interim

* EPREEM  EREMNIERH
RIAREY UXKHEERR
LEDE MMM YEHILESS
BRTHB - ERNBRFRHBEH
AR AR - L R AERNE
78 3t 1 2 15 1O BT 468 Bh AT A P B
WA Gt AR R AR BY ©
b st 7 B 3 S B S AR AR R B ER A 1
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condensed consolidated statement of financial position. ED RS ESE
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating
to these grants.
Other Income and Gains H A R W=
Six months ended 30 June
HZ6H30H1L6{EA
2016 2015
20164 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARK
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (REEEZ)
Other income Hiug A
Bank interest income RITHI B A 12,783 10,686
Government grants R ED 7,136 18,616
Rental income LU A 997 972
Trademark licence fees B & 250 4,146
Others Hip 2,497 3,315
23,663 37,735
Gains Wz
Exchange gains, net FE 5 U 558 5,932 5,080
Gain on disposal of items of BREWE HEX
property, plant and equipment FABIE A B e 2,598 -
Sales of scrap materials $HE B 344 180
8,874 5,260
32,537 42,995
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AR & O B TS R R BT RE

6. Finance Costs 6. HMBEH
Six months ended 30 June
HZ6H30H1L61E A
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEZR) (REgEZ)
Interest on bank loans IRITERF B 363 1,137
Interest expenses on convertible ARG IE AT B
bonds (Note 17) S (KaE17) 2,476 -
Other interest expenses HuAMaE L 2,118 523
4,957 1,660
7. Income Tax Expense 7. FIS®BEX

The Group is subject to income tax on an individual legal
entity basis on profits arising in or derived from the tax
jurisdictions in which the subsidiaries are domiciled and
operated. NVC Brasil is subject to enterprise income tax
on its worldwide income with a basic rate of 15% and
increased by a surtax of 10% on annual taxable profits
exceeding BRL240,000. No provision for Hong Kong profits
tax or the United Kingdom (the “UK”) corporation income
tax has been made as the Group has no assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong or the UK during the Period under
Review (six months ended 30 June 2015: RMBNIl).

ANEE BRI B A R FTEE b M 48
BT AS B AE 8 (R P EE AR sk Bk
BAFIE - BB A ABTREEY
METER - BB ARE 2RI
ABEART R15% M EFTE
- FERERPF EE8240,000
276 85 o0 B ZE 1 101 0% M B AN FR o
CIEER @ ARASBWELEE S
NEBEAFMERTFE - FAt
WELEBFSHAEEPERS
FREr IR B % (B =2015%6 A30H
IF6EA - ARBZRL) -
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consi:lidated Financial Statements

AR A & O A TS B AR B E

7. Income Tax Expense (continued)

The table below sets out the items of income tax expense
in the Period under Review.

FresiRx< (&)

TRIRE A PTEH <R
E o

Six months ended 30 June

HZEZ6H30H1L6{EA
2016 2015
20165 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REERK) (REFEZ)

Current income tax BIHAFT1S 8¢
- Current income tax charge — BEAER SR S
for the period
- Under/(over)-provision in - BEFEBEIR
respect of prior years (EBEERE)
Deferred tax IEEFIE
Total tax charge for the period AEFTE A A

The Company’s subsidiaries located in the PRC are subject
to enterprise income tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%.
According to the preferential tax policies in the PRC, two of
our subsidiaries were recognised as western development
enterprises by the local tax authorities and were entitled
to the preferential tax rate of 15%, while the other three of
our subsidiaries were recognised as high-tech enterprises
by PRC tax authorities and were entitled to the preferential
tax rate of 15%.
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46,603 36,830

819 (5,546)
47,422 31,284
(2,410) (9,560)
45,012 21,724
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Earnings per Share Attributable to
Ordinary Equity Holders of the Parent

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the six months ended 30 June 2015 and 2016.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the period, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on
the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the six months ended 30 June
2015 and 2016 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the
share options and convertible bonds outstanding had an
anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amounts
presented.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolldated Fmancnal Statements

RIS Ot B R AR MY

8. Earnings per

Share Attributable to 8.

Ordinary Equity Holders of the Parent

(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share

are based on:

1SN

PEAS
EXREEEGR
ARE

Six months ended 30 June

HZ6H30H1L6{/EA
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARK
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
Earnings: 2R
Profit attributable to ordinary BRETEERSR
equity holders of the parent B R EBNRT AT
for the purposes of basic TRREREB A
earnings per share FEAE 8T 82,140 17,073
Six months ended 30 June
B Z6H30A L6{E A
2016 2015
20164 20154
’000 Shares 000 Shares
F IR AR 10 & T AR A% 19 8K
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
Shares: fRf -
Weighted average number of ARFTEERERAEN
ordinary shares for the purposes 58 I N AE 39 2
of basic earnings per share 3,128,448 3,128,448
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10.

Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2015 and 2016.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the six months ended 30 June 2016, the Group
acquired assets with a cost of RMB48,432,000 (six months
ended 30 June 2015: RMB27,205,000). Assets with a net
book value of RMB232,000 were disposed of by the Group
during the six months ended 30 June 2016 (six months
ended 30 June 2015: RMB517,000), resulting in a net gain
on disposal of RMB2,598,000 (six months ended 30 June
2015: net loss on disposal of RMB631,000).

As at 30 June 2016, land use rights with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB48,973,000 (31 December
2015 RMB49,633,000) (Note 11) and certain buildings
included in property, plant and equipment with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB242,728,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB248,348,000) were pledged for Group’s applications
of assets preservation in certain PRC legal proceedings.
Property in the UK with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB45,536,000 (31 December 2015: RMBNIl) was pledged
to secure a bank loan.

10.

g

BEEETNERTREZ2016F K
20166 A30H [E61E A < # H %

M - BEKRE

& 20166 A30H [t618 B © &
£ B ARLS432F T (B E
2015F6H30H k68 A : AR %
27,205F L) BEEE - {22016
F6H30R L6 A - A&EEE 1
ERAFEAARE22T TH
& & (B 2201568308 [+61#
A: ARKS17T L) EHHE
W FREARK2508F T (BE
20156 H30H LE6E A : H & &
8F B ARK6E31F L) °

201666830 ' BREE A &
AR #48,973F JT K L th {F 3 4
(2015412 A31H : AR#49,633
Fo) (KsE11) REEEES LA
R #242,728F 7T (2015512 A 31
B: AR¥248348F T) & T
M BERBETPHEFRASE
ERETHBEAEEFPHBEE
REEWER - FEEGHEARE
45536T 7¢ (2015512 A31H : A
REZI) MEARYMECERIESR
RITE AR -
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11.

Prepaid Land Lease Payments 11. ANLES
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
201645 2015%F
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARK
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (fe&%)
Carrying amounts as at Y FHRREE
beginning of period/year 49,633 56,109
Recognised during the period/year RN FRIER (660) (1,463)
Reclassification to assets held for sale  E#HEEHE
HEMEE - (5,013)
Carrying amount as at end of period/year Hi>k / ERHIBEEE 48,973 49,633
Current portion included FFATERK C RES
in prepayments, deposits T2 EL At JE IR R
and other receivables B Eh R 10 (875) (875)
Non-current portion FETRBNEL D 48,098 48,758
12. Available-for-sale Financial Assets 12. IHEEESREE
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
M20164 20154
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&EZ)
Listed equity investments, at fair value R 2R BEEN LT
ZRAEKE 24,600 -
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12.

13.

Available-for-sale Financial Assets 12,

(continued)

During the Period under Review, the gross gain in respect
of the Group’s available-for-sale investments recognised in
other comprehensive income amounted to RMB2,600,000.

AHHESREE (&)

REERHA - HERNE LR
ANAEERHELEREBKES
AER#2,600F 7T °

Inventories 13. &
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20164 20154
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARY FARH
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Raw materials R AF ¥ 69,673 71,451
Work in progress E&5 18,300 21,883
Finished goods EE K an 338,924 402,116
426,897 495,450

During the Period under Review, the amount of the reversal
of write-down of inventories recognised was RMB9,572,000
(six months ended 30 June 2015: write-down of
RMB15,811,000), which was recorded in “Cost of sales”
in the interim condensed consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

ClIEEAAN - EERNEREFER
LeBEAARKIST2T T (BE
20156 H30H L6 A : B E &
EAARK15811F L) RHEH
A EaRPHEECHER [H
B o
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14. Trade and Bills Receivables, Prepayments, 14. ES K EBE BRI - &
Deposits, and Other Receivables, and N7 ﬁ%ﬁ EREMEWR
Restricted Bank Balances and Short-term BR AL K 32 PR I BV 4R 17 &4
Deposits %E&%EL,HHT-?-M

30 June 31 December

2016 2015

20165 20154

6A30H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

TARY TFAR®E

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RBEZ) (&%)

Trade receivables B 5 AR 1,179,271 1,135,749

Impairment VERED (134,204) (118,992)

Trade receivables, net B S EWBET R 1,045,067 1,016,757

Bills receivable FERREWERR 207,558 187,013
Less: Trade receivables with maturity J& : Z|EiH BB —FH

more than one year FE U BR FR (13,214) (13,856)

Current portion TREhERD 1,239,411 1,189,914

M The amount represented trade receivables due from a
customer which was expected to be repaid beyond 12
months from 30 June 2016. In addition, an amount of
RMBNIil due from the same customer, net of impairment,
was recorded as current as at 30 June 2016 (31 December
2015: RMB21,358,000). The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over the trade
receivable balances.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

14.

Trade and Bills Receivables, Prepayments,
Deposits, and Other Receivables, and
Restricted Bank Balances and Short-term
Deposits (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the Period under Review, based on the transaction date
and net of provision, is as follows.

AR & O B TS R R BT RE

=
%
ANEY
a
14

B 3% UL R B IR 4 ¢
BREHER (F)

THIREREBEYIRE S RIRR
MERER DT - R Z B MR
R

30 June 31 December

2016 2015

20165F 20154

6H30H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARY FARE

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (&=

Within 3 months 3ME AR 792,949 639,615
4 to 6 months 42618 A 140,967 235,337
7 to 12 months 7E121E R 63,647 59,798
1 to 2 years 1FF2F 27,738 68,990
Over 2 years 29 DA 19,766 13,017
1,045,067 1,016,757
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consdlidated Financial Statements

AR A & O A TS B AR B E

14.

Trade and Bills Receivables, Prepayments,
Deposits, and Other Receivables, and
Restricted Bank Balances and Short-term
Deposits (continued)

Trade receivables of the Group represented proceeds
receivable from sale of goods. The Group’s trading terms
with its customers are mainly on credit, except for new
customers where payment in advance is normally required.
The credit periods generally range from 30 to 180 days
for major customers. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balance. Overdue
interests of several trade receivables are calculated at an
annual interest rate of 12%.

As at 30 June 2016, certain trade receivables of UK NVC
with carrying amounts of RMB42,430,000 (31 December
2015: RMB22,153,000) were pledged to secure the bank
borrowings of UK NVC as further set out in Note 16.

The maturity of the bills receivable of the Group as at 31
December 2015 and 30 June 2016 is within 6 months.
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AR & O B TS R R BT RE

14.

Trade and Bills Receivables, Prepayments,
Deposits, and Other Receivables, and
Restricted Bank Balances and Short-term
Deposits (continued)

As at 31 December 2015 and 30 June 2016, except for the
trade receivables with maturity over one year as mentioned
above, the fair values of trade and bills receivables
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities.

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
are the amounts due from a company of RMB550,924,000
(31 December 2015: RMB550,924,000) in aggregate arising
from the rights held by the Group pursuant to several letters
of counter guarantee issued by the company which was
also one of the borrowers of the bank loans. The directors
were of the opinion that an amount of RMB265,564,000 (31
December 2015: RMB265,564,000) was expected to be
recoverable through the enforcement of counter guarantees.
The unrecoverable amount of RMB285,360,000 has been
provided for impairment as at 31 December 2015 and 30
June 2016. Further details are set out in Note 18(a).

Included in restricted bank balances and short-term
deposits is a frozen bank balance of RMB54,758,000 and
RMB55,076,000 as at 31 December 2015 and 30 June
2016 respectively. Further details are set out in Note 18(b)
(i).

14.
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RIS Ot B R AR MY

15. Trade and Bills Payables 15. EZREBREARM
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20164 2015%F
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FARK
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&&EZ)
Trade and bills payables to third parties ES5 NEREMNERR
—-%=7 540,556 560,594
Trade and bills payables to related parties & 5 M 2 EF R
— A 39,805 50,904
580,361 611,498

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
end of the Period under Review, based on the transaction
date, is as follows.

THRERNEBEHRENRRZ S B H
ME S EEBREMNERRNKRE D
1 e

30 June 31 December

2016 2015

20164 20154

6H30H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARH TFAR®

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (TEZ)

Within 3 months 3MEAMA 538,586 589,303
4 to 6 months 4% 618 A 12,501 4,654
7 to 12 months 721218 A 18,223 7,694
1 to 2 years 1FEZF2F 8,854 9,660
Over 2 years 2F LA 2,197 187
580,361 611,498

As at 31 December 2015 and 30 June 2016, the fair values
of trade and bills payables approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities.
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AR & O B TS R R BT RE

16.

Interest-bearing Loans 16. FFEEM
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
201656A30A 2015%12431R
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (B&E7)
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity  RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity ~ RMB’000
BHFIE(%) ZHA FAR® ARFIE %) &R FARK
Current RaHH
Bank loans - secured ROTER - BHR Base*+1.90 On demand' 42,430 Base*+1.90 On demand’ 22,153
ERFI% +1.00 RERHA ERFIR 4100 REREVA
5.35% 2016% 27,800
5.35% 2016%3 22,200
3.20% 20162 101,969
Bank loan - unsecured  $HITER — EHEA 4% per month 2016 2,481 S
4%,/ &R
Total At 44,911 174,122

The secured bank loan represented a GBP-dominated
secured facility amounting to GBP8,000,000 (31 December
2015: GBP5,000,000), of which GBP4,756,000 (31
December 2015: GBP2,304,000) had been utilised as at
the end of the Period under Review. The bank loan was
secured by the pledge over certain trade receivables
amounting to RMB42,430,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB22,153,000), property in the UK with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB45,536,000 (31 December 2015:
RMBNIl) and time deposits amounting to RMBNil (31
December 2015: RMB51,000,000). In accordance with the
contract, the loan was repayable upon the collection of the
factored trade receivables.

EEBIRITERIE —FUARGEE
7 A 1 37 Bh & 5 E X £58,000F 7T
(2015128318 : HE85000F 7T) *
H b 3% $84,756F JT (20154F12A
318 : ®$2,304F t) REEEER
EWEA - RITERTDAERAR
#42 430F 7t (2015512 A31H
ARBE22153F L) METESE
RS - BRAEE ST AR 45,536
FrafEEEm Y (20155124
318 : ARBZ L) UREBFER
ARBZ5E (20165F12A318 : A
R ¥51,000F 7T) fEREE - BRI
AR RREIEEENE S EIKRK
% ZEERAAEE -

BTXRBERBRAT 2016F P HME
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16.

17.

Interest-bearing Loans (continued)

2 The secured banks loans represented RMB-denominated
secured facilities. The bank loans were secured by the pledge
of time deposits amounting to RMBNIil (31 December 2015:
RMB151,850,000).

3 The loan agreements contain repayment on demand clause.

“Base” means the Bank of England base rate.

As at 30 June 2016, the fair values of interest-bearing loans
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities.

Convertible bonds

On 20 May 2016, the Company and an independent
third party entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Subscription Agreement”) in relation to the issue of
convertible bonds denominated in Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”)
in an aggregate principal amount of HKD500 million (the
“Convertible Bonds”). The Convertible Bonds have been
issued on 7 June 2016.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the Convertible
Bonds are convertible into fully paid ordinary shares:

(a) on or after the issue date (i.e. 7 June 2016) and up
to and excluding the close of business on the second
anniversary of the issue date (the “First Maturity
Date”) at an initial conversion price of HKD0.925 per
share (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments); and

(b) with extension up to and excluding the close of
business on the fourth anniversary of the issue date
if agreed by the Company and the bondholder in
writing at least 30 days prior to the First Maturity
Date (the “Second Maturity Date”).
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17.

Convertible bonds (continued)

The Convertible Bonds bear interest at the rate of 7.8% per
annum on the principal amount of the bonds outstanding.
The interest will be payable by the Company semi-annually
in arrears. The outstanding amount of the Convertible
Bonds will be redeemed on maturity (the date falling on
the First Maturity Date or the Second Maturity Date, where
applicable) at a value equal to the aggregate of (1) its
principal amount outstanding; and (2) the interest accrued.

The Convertible Bonds that contain both liability and
conversion option components were classified separately
into their respective items on initial recognition. The
embedded derivative of conversion option is therefore
accounted for as a derivative. The fair values of the
derivative component are determined based on the
valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited, a firm of professionally
qualified valuers, using the binomial option pricing model.
Changes in fair value of that component between the issue
date and the measurement date are recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value of the liability component is measured as
the present value of the expected payments and principal
repayment at maturity on initial recognition and is carried
as a liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished
on conversion or redemption.

BB ES (&)

A MBESFIE R ABREES AR
AFEFIR7.8%5T B - ARBHR
F¥EHRIMANE - ATRRES
RTEBEREHE (FE2H
HE _EIBPRAER (HER))
BOERABRASE « RQ)ERT
M2z FNEEE o

SRERRBRERD AR RE
RN HERE 2 F 57 R R8I IA
B BBy RANITETA
FHILABRIMWENSTET A - fTATA
BONLRARBEDRBEEXSER
AEfRE R R TT R NERE
[RABIAZIRA M E EEAETT
MHEEETE - ZBORNEITAEA
ERRENAABEESEALE
@ BERON AR BERYIZHE
R IR TR B R e AR 2 28 RN B
R EIRERFE - WIZE R AT A
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2
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17.

17. RRES (&)

Convertible bonds (continued)

The movements of the liability component and derivative
component of the Convertible Bonds during the six months
ended 30 June 2016 are as follows:

BMEEFNAR
EEEEIT

30 June 2016

# 2201656 A30A L6f@ A - A
B0 ROTAE T AES

201646 530H

Liability Derivative

component of component of

convertible convertible
bonds bonds Total

TRRESN TRRESH
GEHG TETAHG &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARME TAR® TARE
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER)
Issue of the Convertible Bonds BREITHITRRES 416,493 10,841 427,334

Effective interest expenses RBHREZNERA S

recognised to profit or loss 2,476 - 2,476
Interest paid BEAFHE (1,187) - (1,187)
Fair value change DR BEED - 837 837
Exchange realignment HINGE B 19 10 29
30 June 2016 201646 H30H 417,801 11,688 429,489
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17.

18.

Convertible bonds (continued)

The major inputs for the valuation of the fair value of the
derivative component of the Convertible Bonds as at the
issue date and 30 June 2016 are shown as follows:

Share price

Conversion price

B(E

Risk-free rate
[ B 1) 2
Volatility

B

Dividend yield
A6 8.1 4 2

Litigations and Contingent Liabilities

Litigations

(@)

The Group as a plaintiff

A subsidiary of the Company (the “Subsidiary”)
entered into several pledge and guarantee
agreements in 2013 and 2014 (the “Pledge and
Guarantee Agreements”) with certain banks in the
PRC, providing guarantees to the banks for their
loan facilities granted to certain borrowers. As
at 31 December 2013, an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB160,000,000 was recorded as
pledged time deposits to the banks under the Pledge
and Guarantee Agreements. During 2014, additional
time deposits were pledged to the banks under the
Pledge and Guarantee Agreements entered into in
2014. Counter guarantees were provided by one of
the borrowers of the bank loans, namely Chongging
Wu Ji Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Wu Ji”),
to the Group. During 2014, aggregate pledged time
deposits of RMB550,924,000 had been withdrawn
by the banks due to default of the bank loans under
the guarantees of the Subsidiary.

17. AR ES (&)

MNE1T A RN20165F6 A30H A #2
BRESTETIERH AR BEMGE
MEZ&@ ASBBITRAT

Issue date 30 June 2016
E%1TH 2016F6H30H

HKDO0.85 HKDO0.82
0.85/87T 0.82/87T
HKDO0.925 HKDO0.925
0.925% 7T 0.925% 7T
0.6136% 0.4791%
39.09% 38.87%
0.78% 0.78%

18. FaKHEAE

e
& B2
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AEEBIRE

KRB —KHBRRF ([
B R all) 20134 k2014
FHEPEHEETRTFILE
HERKERBGE ([EH
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R - A2013512H831H -
& 2 584H AR 160,000
FrRRBELRRERBZED
STEERFRITHNEHE
oo BIE2014F T B W
MERBGZ - BINEHFR
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18. Litigations and Contingent Liabilities
(continued)

Litigations (continued)
(a) The Group as a plaintiff (continued)

From December 2014 onwards, the Group has
initiated a series of legal proceedings against Mr.
WU Changjiang, a former director and former chief
executive officer of the Company, Mrs. WU Lian
(spouse of Mr. WU Changjiang), Mr. WU Xianming,
Mrs. CHEN Min, Chongging Lei Li Jie Industrial
Development Co., Ltd., Wu Ji, Chongging Jiang Te
Surface Treatment Co., Ltd. and Chongging Hua Biao
Lighting Manufacturing Co., Ltd., in the Intermediate
People’s Court of Huizhou for damages. In addition,
as indicated in 8 letters of counter guarantee
issued by Wu Ji with dates in 2013 and 2014, Wu
Ji provided counter guarantees to the Group to
reimburse any losses for provision of guarantees on
the bank loans borrowed by certain PRC companies
under the Pledge and Guarantee Agreements.
An aggregate amount of RMB550,924,000 was
recognised as other receivables due from a company
as at 31 December 2014 and 2015, and 30 June
2015 and 2016. The directors are of the opinion
that an amount of RMB265,564,000 is recoverable
as at 31 December 2014 and 2015, and 30 June
2015 and 2016, and accordingly a provision for the
unrecoverable amount of RMB285,360,000 had been
charged in profit or loss of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and there was no further
provision or write-back of provision for impairment
loss during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the six months ended 30 June 2015 and 2016.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

18. Litigations and Contingent Liabilities
(continued)

Litigations (continued)

(b) The Group as a defendant

(i)

In addition to the Pledge and Guarantee
Agreements, the Subsidiary entered into
guarantee agreements with another PRC
bank in 2013 (the “Guarantee Agreement
1”) and a PRC finance company in 2014
(the “Guarantee Agreement 2”) respectively,
providing guarantees to the PRC bank and
the PRC finance company for their loan
facilities granted to their borrowers. Mrs. WU
Lian is the borrower of the loan in relation to
the Guarantee Agreement 2.

The outstanding loans of RMB35,497,000 and
RMB34,000,000 in relation to the Guarantee
Agreements 1 and 2 were in default in 2015
and 2014 respectively. The PRC bank and
the PRC finance company have taken legal
actions against the respective borrowers and
the guarantors (including the Subsidiary and
Wu Ji as guarantors) to recover the loan
balances and interests. The directors consider
that the likelihood of the Group sustaining
losses from the Guarantee Agreements 1 and
2 is remote as it is considered that the loans
had sufficient underlying securities including
Wu Ji's guarantees and the Subsidiary is only
one of the guarantors for each of the loans.
As a result, the directors considered that no
provision thereon is considered necessary as
at 31 December 2014 and 2015, and 30 June
2015 and 2016.

Subsequent to the end of reporting period,
the Group has received a judgement from
the court, which orders, among other things,
that the Group is jointly and severally liable
for the payment of outstanding loan of
RMB35,497,000 and interest to the PRC bank
in relation to the Guarantee Agreement 1.

AR & O B TS R R BT RE
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18. Litigations and Contingent Liabilities
(continued)

Litigations (continued)

®)

(i

The Group as a defendant (continued)

The Subsidiary also entered into a guarantee
agreement (the “Guarantee Agreement 3”)
with a PRC bank in 2014, providing guarantee
to the bank for a loan facility granted to its
borrower. In addition, the bank loan was
secured by the pledge of a piece of land
owned by Wu Ji.

The bank loan was in default in 2014 and
the bank has taken legal actions against
the borrower and the guarantors (including
the Subsidiary) to recover the bank loan
balance and interest. A court order was
issued to freeze assets of the guarantors
(including the Subsidiary) in the amount of
RMB62,000,000. As a result of the court
order, bank balance of the Subsidiary in the
amount of RMB54,128,000, RMB54,758,000,
RMB54,442,000 and RMB55,076,000 had
been frozen by the bank as at 31 December
2014 and 2015, and 30 June 2015 and
2016 respectively, which was recorded in
“Restricted bank balances and short-term
the
consolidated statement of financial position

deposits” in interim  condensed

of the Group.
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18. Litigations and Contingent Liabilities 18. sFEARBIEBEAE (&2)
(continued)

Litigations (continued) FER (2)
(b) AEEERBEEA (F)

(b) The Group as a defendant (continued)

(i) (continued) Gy (&)

During the current period, the Group has
received a judgement from the court, which
orders, among other things, that the Group is
jointly and severally liable for the payment of
principal of RMB60,000,000 and interest and
costs to the bank. The Group has filed an
appeal against the judgement with the court,
and the outcome of the appeal is pending
as of the date of approval of these interim
condensed consolidated financial statements.

The directors consider that the likelihood
of the Group sustaining losses from the
guarantee is remote as it is considered
that the bank loan had sufficient underlying
securities and the Subsidiary is only one
of the guarantors for the bank loan. The
directors believe that the above frozen bank
balance will be released upon the conclusion
of the legal proceedings and no provision is
considered necessary as at 31 December
2014 and 2015, and 30 June 2015 and
2016. In addition, the directors are of the
opinion that no provision on any shortfall
between the amount to be ultimately settled
by the Group under the Guarantee Agreement
3 and the above frozen bank balance is
considered necessary as at 31 December
2014 and 2015, and 30 June 2015 and 2016
respectively.

RABE AEEE
WA BT B9 #R - #
2 (HPe#E) ~&E
BARITEFARKE
60,000F 7T % F &
MBS A E R M E
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EF MEFERR
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18. Litigations and Contingent Liabilities 18. sFEARZEBEAE (&F
(continued)
Contingent liabilities XEAE
(a)  As at 30 June 2016, contingent liabilities not provided (a) A Z=2016F6H30H Ik &
for in the interim condensed consolidated financial R RS & OF B IS sk 51
statements were as follows: REFEOIABERT -
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20164 20154
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FARE
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&EZ)
Guarantees given to banks and MET T3 /‘—7//\11;'%
a finance company in connection ma FIRITR—
with facilities granted to: IR SN ﬂﬁ’\ﬁ%‘ﬁ :
2 PRC companies and Mrs. WU MEREARRREZLE
Lian, an individual (EARIAL) 131,497 131,497

(b) The Group currently acts as defendant in lawsuits
brought by 2 PRC banks and a PRC finance
company alleging that the Group should assume
guarantee liabilities and interests according to
guarantee agreements. The directors consider that
the likelihood of the Group sustaining further losses
from the guarantees is remote, and accordingly no
provision for claims arising from the litigations is
considered necessary as at 31 December 2015 and
30 June 2016, save for the related legal and other
costs.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

AR & O B TS R R BT RE

19.

20.

Pledge of Assets

19.

As at 30 June 2016, save for those disclosed elsewhere in

these interim condensed consolidated financial statements,

the following assets of the Group were pledged, as

applicable:

EERHA

M2016F6 A30H - BrANH HARG A
EHMBRRATEEEN K
SETHEED KB (RIERM

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Trade and bills receivables
Pledged time deposits

Related Party Transactions

Bt e
EE VS TE T
BHEMEMFR

20.

(@) None of the shareholders is the controlling

entity of the Company.

(b) Major related parties with which the Group
had transactions during the six months
ended 30 June 2016 and six months ended

30 June 2015 are listed below:

An entity with significant influence over the Group

Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd. (“Elec-Tech”)

E) ¢
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20164 20154
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARM
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEX) (BEZ)
288,264 248,348
48,973 49,633
42,430 22,153
51,573 254,222
431,240 574,356
BB RS
(a) BERRALXQATERE
B o
(b) E Z£2016F6H30H 16

8 B X8 E201556 530
Hi6E A EAEBET
REMNETEREEHE Y W
T:

—SHEXEFMEEEADE
HIE e
EREFHEERBMND AR
~nE ([EsEED)
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20. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Subsidiaries of Elec-Tech

Wuhu Retop Electronics Co., Ltd.

Appliance Co. of America (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.
Dalian Elec Lighting Technology Co., Ltd.
Guangdong Elec-Tech NVC Lighting Co., Ltd.
Shenzhen Retop LED Display Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Retop Lighting Landscape Art Design
Engineering Co., Ltd.

Wuhu Sanyi Lighting Co., Ltd.

Wuhu Elec-Tech International Lighting Technology
Co., Ltd.

An associate of the Group and a subsidiary of
Elec-Tech
Huizhou Thor Led-Opto Co., Ltd.

An associate of the Group
Wuhu NVC Agel Ecommerce Ltd.

Entities controlled by Mr. WU Jiannong, a director
and substantial shareholder of Zhejiang NVC
Jiangshan World Bright Crystal Co., Ltd.

Quzhou Aushite lllumination Co., Ltd.

An entity over which the Group indirectly has
significant influence through an associate

Chongging Chidian Technology Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

AR & O B TS R R BT RE

20. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b)

(c)

(continued)

An entity controlled by Mr. WANG Xiaobo, a
former key management of the Company’
Nanjing Chuang Yi Jia Trading Co., Ltd.

U On 21 May 2015, the entity ceased to be a related
party of the Group due to the resignation of a key

management of the Company.

In addition to the transactions detailed
elsewhere in the interim condensed
consolidated financial statements, the Group
had the following transactions with related
parties during the six months ended 30 June
2016:

20.

(c)

LRSS (&)
(b) (#&)

—HHAEXRAFEEEEA
BT BRI H B A
MRA—EEZERAA

L R2015F5H8218 @ BRA
RAl—MEBEBABEH
B ZERTHAREEN
Bl

BRAMEESHTEHREREM
WHHHENRZ N REER
H £2016F6H30B L6 A B
LTEEARS :

Six months ended 30 June

EZ6A30HL6MEA
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARYE TAR®
Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

i3 (REER) (REER)

Elec-Tech: BEREE
Purchase of finished goods BEEK®
Subsidiaries of Elec-Tech: BREENNERA -
Sale of finished goods HEEKMD

Trademark licence fee income  BIZ&FAI B UA

Purchase of raw materials and B E BEM# K EK &
finished goods

Rental fee income AL ON

Purchase of property, BEWE  BERE
plant and equipment

(i) 569 8
(i) 568 4
(ii) 244 3,506
(i) 39,443 39,962
(i) 121 -
(i) 45 -
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20. Related Party Transactions (continued) 20. BHMARG (2
(¢) (continued) () (&)

Six months ended 30 June

EZ6H30AL6MEA
2016 2015
20165 2015%
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY TAR®
Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

it (REER)  (REER)

An associate of the Group —XEFEBNEE L ARERE

and a subsidiary of ENHEAA -

Elec-Tech:
Purchase of finished goods BEEK S (i - 103
Purchase of property, BEWE  BEEE

plant and equipment (i) 3,735 =
Rental fee income HE WA (i 591 586
An associate of the Group: —HEEFHHE R -
Sales of raw materials and HERME REK R

finished goods (i) 105,647 -
Entities controlled by WIELTHWEERLTERR

Mr. WU Jiannong, a director =~ RZBESLLFZEIHERE :
and substantial shareholder

of Zhejiang NVC:
Purchases of raw materials and 88 B R £ & E K &

finished goods (i) 3,850 5,205
Sales of raw materials and SHE B R REMK G

finished goods (i) - 2,052
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20. Related Party Transactions (continued)

20. BBAERS (&

(c)  (continued) () (#&)
Six months ended 30 June
B Z6A30ALL6MEA
2016 2015
20165 20155
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FTARE
Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Hist (REEZ) (REEEZ)
Entities over which the Group HAEFEEEBE L A5
indirectly has significant HEREAFEAZENER -
influence through an associate:
Purchases of raw materials EEREME REK®
and finished goods (i) 5,096 5,429
An entity controlled by —SHARAFEEEREAS
Mr. WANG Xiaobo, a former ~ EBRELZHIFERE -
key management of
the Company:
Sales of raw materials and HE RN R N EK S
finished goods (i) - 883,467

Notes:

(i) The transactions were made at prices mutually
agreed by both parties.

(ii) Trademark licence fee income arose from licensing
the “NVC” brand to related parties, and charged at
1% to 3% of the related parties’ annual sales. The
royalty rate was mutually agreed by both parties.

In the opinion of the board of directors, the related
party transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business.

) RBREESBEOER
47 -

(i MBS EAEL] @
WP EE A ORISR AT AT B U A
DEABT 2FHEREN
1%ZE3%xT e - WEXRTHH
ETWE °

EXeRREB RS TIR

EEBEGRFIEANEE K
EHEBBEPET -
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AR A & O A TS B AR B E

20. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(d)

(e)

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the interim
condensed consolidated financial statements, as
at 30 June 2016, included in trade receivables;
prepayments, deposits and other receivables; and
other payables and accruals of the Group are the
aggregate balance of RMB74,020,000 (31 December
2015: RMB523,000); RMB3,579,000 (31 December
2015: RMB8,439,000); and RMB6,460,000 (31
December 2015: RMB2,695,000) due with related
parties.

Compensation of key management personnel
of the Group:

20. BEMAXRS (&)

(d) BEEFHRFELLR
bR ERRS R & GF A FS R A
BT &S 2016630
Hat AU 5 AR & B
ZZ IR : B R
B REMBBUERR: AKX
EMmENERREFTER
& H A AR KT74020F T
(2015%12831H : AR¥
523F L) i AR ¥3,579F
7T (201512 A31H : AR
#8,439F L) : MR ARK
6,460F JT (2015512 A 31
H: AR¥2695F7T) K4
ﬁé&\ o

AEBFTEEEAEFH
BA

(e)

Six months ended 30 June

HZ6H30H LL61@ A
2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FARE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
Short-term employee benefits [ HIE E 127 9,861 9,742
Equity-settled share option R EE o BRERS
expenses = 5
9,861 9,747
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AR & O B TS R R BT RE

21.

Financial Instruments by Category 21. RERNEITWEMIEA
Set out below is an overview of financial instruments held AEER2016F6 H0RFEN 2
by the Group as at 30 June 2016: MTEMERT :
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20164 20154
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (')
Financial assets: SHREE:
Loans and receivables at REHR AN ER R
amortised cost: FEWK
Trade receivables with maturity more JHHBA—FNES
than one year JE U AR X 13,214 13,856
Trade and bills receivables B 5 REBREWRER 1,239,411 1,189,914
Financial assets included in prepayments, #WATENE « RES N
deposits and other receivables HEMERERNSREE 334,515 315,563
Restricted bank balances and X HIRITESR R E TR
short-term deposits 250,949 660,307
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEY 1,055,533 908,849
2,893,622 3,083,489
Available-for-sale financial assets at RAnEENAIHLE
fair value TREE 24,600 -

ELRPERARDET 2016FFHRME
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21. Financial Instruments by Category 21. B E s E/M I A

(continued) (&)
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20164 20154
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FARE
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEZ) (18 &%)
Financial liabilities: TRAE:
Financial liabilities at fair value through AR BEFTABRERN
profit or loss: TRAE :
Convertible bonds AmRES
- derivative component —PTETEAEE G, 11,688 -
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: RN A BRH
THREME -
Trade and bills payables EEVESE AN 580,361 611,498
Financial liabilities included in other AN EL A S BR A R
payables and accruals EstERNESmAE 372,246 364,300
Interest-bearing loans TEEX 44,911 174,122
Convertible bonds MR ESF—BEEH
— liability component 417,801 =
1,415,319 1,149,920
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22,

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of
Financial Instruments

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, restricted bank balances and
short-term deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade and
bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals and interest-bearing loans
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the

short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s management is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of
financial instruments. At each reporting date, management
analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices.

The fair value of the conversion option embedded in the
convertible bonds is measured using valuation technique,
the Binomial Option Pricing Model.

22,

TRITAIARABERA2R
BEER

%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%&fﬁﬁ%’ﬁ% ' ‘_55
BR il B SR 17 A% B8R Ko K8 BATF 5K -
K AR FE WA féf%&mﬁ%}?ﬁ
R MABEMNERER  RESKRE
ERKERNEREE - MAEMD
BNERLEERNEREE
qu%ff/Ty\El’J/Afﬂ {8 B H AR E{E AH
CDEBHRZFERTAGR
L,HHW BBARTEL

REE l%ﬂ%%ﬁ#i%%ﬂlﬂ“
f‘ifﬁﬁgﬂ’]ﬂlﬁﬁ&%ﬂ‘ =

ﬁt BH - EEES *ﬁir@?&lﬂﬂfﬁ
BEEZPLRETERANGEZEE

BWAHE —FRMAEERZES
b ERRFRER - URARHH
RERMBRE o

TRHEENBENAABENSE
AT RETENRSHEES
im
1T

\

MTAZER MZEXZHAIFE
BASER T HE

o

ERZBARREN DA BEIRE

S RENE -

KA BESF R AN R BREN R
nEELER_EABEEEER
B EERMTETE -
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22. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of 22. M I EARBEEKAR
Financial Instruments (continued) BEER (&)
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRETAEESRTAAREE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: FTEEAR
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value DAREBEFENEERERS
As at 30 June 2016 1201656 A30H

Fair value measurement using

NABEAEEANBAE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EZUHE EEZTABE

ERTISRE WAR WAER
(5-8) (5=F8) (5=F8) Bt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR® TAR® TAR®

Financial assets: SHEE
Available-for-sale financial ~ AJftHESFREE
assets 24,600 - - 24,600
Financial liabilities: SREE:
Convertible bonds RRESF—ITETASRH
- derivative component - 11,688 - 11,688
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22,

23.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of 22.

Financial Instruments (continued)

The Group did not have any financial instrument measured
at fair value as at 31 December 2015.

During the Period under Review, there were no transfers of
fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and
no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities.

Capital Commitments 23.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had the following capital
commitments:

EMIAEAARABERAR
BEER (&)

MR2015F12A310 » A& E &
UWAABEFENERIA -

CEHAAN eMEERSRAGES

—ERFE_EZzEAMEIAEER
BERE F-ETEEHIEA -

BEAREE

MR20165F6A30H * REBHE KR
AGEIR

30 June 31 December

2016 2015
20164 20154
6A30H 12A318
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&&= =%)
Contracted, but not provided for: BRTAVEEARFHE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENREE 131,631 132,554

BTXRBERBRAT 2016F P HME
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24.

110

Disposal of a subsidiary

24.

During the Period under Review, the Group disposed

of its entire interest in Zhangpu Phoebus Lighting Co.,

Ltd. to an independent third party at a consideration of
RMB30,146,000. The net assets at the date of disposal

were as follows:

HE—RHE2 A

RARBEHA  RNEBUAARE
30,146 T TR B L EEREHIE
EHTRAAR AR 2 HERET A
BIUF=T7 - RHEERHINFEE
(N

RMB’000
FARE
(Unaudited)
(RE&EZ)
Net assets of subsidiary disposed of: HEHRBARFEE :
Property, plant and equipment W - BELEE 7,994
Prepaid land lease payments EN LIRS 4,961
Other receivables R YK 14,449
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 19
Other payables E A E TSR (2,836)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIAEE (1,860)
22,727
Total consideration BRE 30,146
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE KRB RN 7,419
Satisfied by: AT A
Cash He 30,146
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEMNRSTRAFE
Cash consideration RERE 30,146
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERNRESMIREESEY (19)
30,127
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25.

26.

27.

Acquisition of additional interests in a 25. Wi — X B 2 7 A FE

subsidiary

During the six months ended 30 June 2016, the Group
acquired an effective further 37.5% equity interest in a
subsidiary, increasing its interest from 50% to 87.5% for
a consideration of RMB552,072,000. The difference of
approximately RMB525,725,000 between the proportionate
share of the carrying amount of the acquirees’ net assets
and the consideration paid for the additional interests had
been debited to share premium.

Investment in a joint venture

Pursuant to the partnership agreement between the Group
and the joint venture partner, the Group will contribute
additional RMB400,000,000 to the joint venture on or before
17 March 2046.

Approval of the Interim Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements

The unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors of the Company on 25 August 2016.

26.

27.

e

R E E2016F6 H30R E61E A -
AEE A ARESS2,072F TR
BUWE-—XRXWBRANERREN
37.5%H AXHE - HiE R EH50%3E N
£87.5% ° WHHE S FEEMNRE
BRI HI DR AT R AR
EBEEBEHAREES25 725F TR K
DREAR -

R—XEETLENRE
BEAEEEGETEEBANSG
Bz AEEER2046F3/17

Bz AimaEtEBINEEAR
#400,000F 7T ©

?i't%t}ﬁqﬂ,ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁ

REBXPHBPSHUBERERD
MR2016FE8 A2 EREETEHER
RIERETT ©
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Definitions

B

-

In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following FEARIRET - B X ERBBAAEI - T

words and expressions shall have the following meanings.

“Bengbu NVC”

[EIRE L

“Board”

[EFg]

“BRL”
(%]

“China” or “PRC”

[FE

“Chongaing NVC”

[EEEL]

“Code”

SN

“Company” or “our Company”

[ARRAFE]

ARNMAEEBATEE -

Bengbu NVC Smart Household Technology Co., Ltd* (BB E e REREAE
R~ &]), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group with limited liability incorporated
in the PRC.

HREELTEZREMEBRAR]  —REFEFMAINBREERA - &%
Er2EMBEAR -

the board of Directors of the Company.
ARFEES

Brazilian Real, the lawful currency of the Federative Republic of Brazil.
ERERm  EEMEEE -

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this report and for
geographical reference only and except where the context requires, references in
this report to “China” and the “PRC” do not apply to Taiwan, the Macau Special
Administrative Region and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

hE ARKME - BERARERMIBLEMES - RXESEMEN  ARERA
Rt [PE| 2RATBEESE  RFIFITTHRERREBFIITHRRR

Chongging NVC Lighting Co., Ltd.* (EEE TRAAFR A F]), a wholly foreign-
owned enterprise with limited liability incorporated in the PRC on 1 December
2006 and our direct wholly-owned subsidiary.

EFETHRBEERAA - —RN2006F 121 BEFEFMALMINEBEER
BERR  REMNEEZEWNBAG -

the Corporate Governance Code and the Corporate Governance Report as set
out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
FHRAKEE O (REERTRD K (BEERBE)

NVC Lighting Holding Limited (& + &R EF#E AR BFR A7), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands on 2 March 2006 and subsequently redomiciled to
the Cayman Islands on 30 March 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

ETRBIERBRAT - —KN2006F3A2BERBHER RBESIMK LB
Al BERBERSFESEEN2010F3A30R THSHEENEMA—RERSE
EREBMERA
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“Corresponding Period”

[R5

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“ETIC”

[fesRiEE]

“En Wei Xi”

“Group”
[AR&EE ]

“GBP”
[58% |

“HKS”
7T )

“Hong Kong”
(&%

“Huizhou NVC”

[EMEL]

“HID”
[HID]J

Definitions

B

means the six months ended 30 June 2016 or the six months ended 30 June
2015 (as the context may require).
HZ=20169 65300 1L618 Ak EH =2015F6 A30H L61E A (RFEXEME) -

the director(s) of the Company.

RABESR -

Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd." (EREZBHEETRBMHERLQA), a PRC
incorporated company which is currently listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
It is a substantial shareholder of the Company.

BRESZEEERARGOERDE  —REFBEFMAZHAR - BAIERIIES
R LT RARAN—EFEZR/RE -

Chongaing En Wei Xi Industrial Development Co., Ltd.* (EEBEREXEEES
[R/A7A]), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC and owned as to
40% by Mr. WU Xianming, Mr. WU Changjiang’s father-in-law.
EFREAEXERARLAA  —REFEFMAR L BEEF40%H R ERRK
TRAENERRBAKLEEGNBRDA -

our Company and its subsidiaries.
AReIREMBRT -

Great Britain Sterling Pound, the lawful currency of the United Kingdom.
BEE - RBUEAEEY -

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong.

BT BEEEEE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of People Republic of China.
hE ARKMEEFERFHITHRE -

Huizhou NVC Lighting Technology Co., Ltd.* (BENFELRXEREBR AR, a
wholly foreign-owned enterprise with limited liability incorporated in the PRC on
29 April 2006 and our direct wholly-owned subsidiary.
BMELTAEREERAR - —KN2006F 4 5298 7R B M NGB E
BEREERA  REAMNEEZ2EMERR -

High intensity discharge.
BHMERE -
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Definitions

B

“Jiangshan Phoebus”

[T IEEHT

“LEDU

[LEDJ

“Listing Rules”

[ EmRA

“Model Code”

[RZEsT Al

“NVC Brasil”

[EmEL]

“NVC China”

[ELHE]

“ODM”

[ODM]

Jiangshan Phoebus Lighting Electron Co., Ltd.* (LIUJEEETHRBAR AR, a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on 8 March 2006 and our
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary.
TIWWFELHTRABARAR - —KMN2006F3A8HEFRTMAYNEREER
a - REMANEZE2EHREBLGE -

Light-emitting diode.
BR_IGHE -

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.
(BEBBARXZMAERARES LTRAD -

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
FHRAMSE 2 (EHETAEFETIEFRZNVRESTA]D -

NVC Lighting Do Brasil Commercial Import and Export Co., Ltd., a limited liability
company incorporated in Brazil, 51% equity interest of which is held by Hong
Kong TYU Technology Co., Ltd., our wholly-owned subsidiary, and the remaining
49% equity interest of which is held by NVC Brasil Technology Co., Ltd.
EBEETRAZESELODRRAR  —RECREMAZMNEREEAF - HF
B2 EMBRAREBERPIEEARARRES1%HRE - A THI49% A S
ERAETRARMERIFEE -

NVC Lighting (China) Co., Ltd.* (ELHRE (FhE) AR A E]) (formerly known
as NVC Lighting (Chongqging) Co., Ltd* (EEEZETEEAMR 2R A), a wholly
foreign-owned enterprise with limited liability incorporated in the PRC on 7
November 2011 and our indirect wholly-owned subsidiary.

BELREA (hE) ARAR (REBRELTEXARAF) - —KN20114F11A7H
EFREFMKZHAIEEEERETLA  ERMOBZEZEWBEAF -

Original Design Manufacturing, a type of manufacturing under which the
manufacturer is responsible for the design and production of the products and
the products are marketed and sold under the customer’s brand name.
[RERETEGE - RBUERRE  RERAEERORNAE - MERAATF @
R MIEE -
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“020”

[020]

“Period under Review”

[

“RMB”
AR

“SFO”
[ (BHLHBEED)

“Shanghai Arcata”

[ EBMRE]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B8 32 P

“Sunﬂy”

=&

“USA” or “US”

[5E )

"US§”
(%5

Definitions

e

Online to Offline, referring to the combination of business opportunity offline and
internet to enable internet to become the platform of offline transactions.
Online To Offline (TE&REEAR R ERIRT) - RIEMR TOBEBK S REBER
& BOBEKAETIIHHIA o

the six months ended 30 June 2016.
HZE2016F6A308 IH61E A -

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC.

AR > PEZEEH -

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
(BHEERAGKE) (BEBEMIEST1E) -

Shanghai Arcata Electronics Co., Ltd.* (HEMREBEFAERAR), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on 22 September 2005 and our indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary.

LB REEFBERAT - —KN2005F9H22AEHEGEMAZMNEREER
A RERMANEE2ENRBLGE -

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
BEBMERXHMBR AT -

Zhejiang Jiangshan Sunny Electron Co., Ltd.* (T IIL=REFHR AR, a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on 2 July 1994 and our indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary.

WD IIL=RETFHERAGF » —KHW1994F7 A2BEFRBEFAMKZHBRETA
a - RERMANEE2ENHREBLR -

the United States of America, its territories, its possessions and all was subject
to its jurisdiction.

ENRERE - HEL B REEENMEHE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States.
Er 0 EBETEEY -

ELRBERBMROA 2016FH Bt
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Definitions

B

“UK NVC”

“we”, “us” or “our”

[ #fF

“Wu Ji”

[ 45 |

“Zhangpu Phoebus”

(BENCEE =3l

“Zhejiang NVC”

M TEL]

“Zhongshan NVC”

-

NVC Lighting Limited (formerly known as NVC (Manufacturing) Limited), a private
company incorporated in England and Wales on 31 May 2007, and our direct
wholly-owned subsidiary.

NVC Lighting Limited (R /ANVC (Manufacturing) Limited) - —ZKm20074
SABTBEEEBERBB LMK INFART  BRMNEEZENBLR -

our Company or our Group (as the context may require).

ARRHAEE (BFXEME) °

Chongging Wu Ji Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. * (EE Z G E M EMRZE AR
A7), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC which may potentially
be associated with Mr. WU Changjiang.

EERGEMERBEARAF  —REFRBETMAI BAIAEER KT %484
B AMRAR] -

Zhangpu Phoebus Lighting Co., Ltd.* (Z#JE L HTBRRA B R A ), a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC on 9 May 2004. On March 2016, 100% equity
interest of Zhangpu Phoebus was disposed to an independent third party and
ceased to be our indirect wholly-owned subsidiary.

EHIELHTRAARAF  —KR2004F5 AR THREEMAIHEREEA
Al > 20169F3H » BHIFEH100%NREELETELE=7 - THREMD
BZEZENBAR

Zhejiang NVC Lamps Co., Ltd.* (I EFETEEBRAF]), a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC on 28 September 2007, 51% equity interest
of which is held by Huizhou NVC and the remaining 49% equity interest of which
is held by Zhejiang Tonking New Energy Group Co., Ltd.* (/TR S #eLREE
BRAA).

WIETEABRAR - —KN2007F9 A28 B EFBIFMK M BEREEAR
BME LB EL1%RE - AT H49%BERIN I RS REBRBRAREA -

Zhongshan NVC Decorative Lighting Technology Co., Ltd.* (LU E L& &#HEHR A
[ /A &]), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on 26 January 2015
and our indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary.

[FLEL] FILETEHERERAR - —KKR2015F1 A26B AP BREMAINERET
NA RERMNEZEFEZEMBRR -
* Denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese company or

entity and is provided for identification purposes only.
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